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STATE OF WASHINGTON

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIES

P.O. Box 44000 ¢ Olympia Washington 98504-4000

October 20, 2017

The Honorable Jay Inslee, Governor
Honorable Members of the Legislature
Director of Office of Financial Management
Washington State Citizens

Olympia, Washington

RE: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

The Revised Code of Washington 51.44.115 requires the Department of Labor & Industries (L&I)
to publish a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Workers” Compensation
Program within six months of the close of each fiscal year. This report is published to fulfill that
requirement for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.

L&l is fully responsible for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in this
report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal controls established for this purpose.
Because the cost of internal controls should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to
provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any
material misstatements.

The State Auditor has issued an unmodified (“‘clean”) opinion on the Workers’ Compensation
Program financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017. The independent auditor’s report
is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial
statements. The MD&A complements the information provided in this letter of transmittal and
should be read together with it.

PROFILE OF WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAM

L&I, an agency of Washington State, is responsible for managing the state’s workers’
compensation system; enforcing the Washington Industrial Safety and Health Act; providing
safety and health consultations and information; enforcing wage and hour, child labor and family
leave requirements; managing the state’s Crime Victims’ Compensation Program; registering
contractors and apprentices; inspecting electrical work, elevators, boilers and factory-assembled
structures; and issuing licenses for certain skilled trades.



L&I headquarters is located at 7273 Linderson Way SW in Tumwater, Washington. In addition,
there are 18 L&l field offices across Washington State that enable us to respond to specific needs
in different localities.

The workers’ compensation system has existed in Washington State for 106 years. Washington
was one of the first states to enact workers’ compensation laws. Our state’s Workmen’s
Compensation Act, established on July 28, 1911, was designed to protect workers and employers
from injustice and financial hardship arising from work-related injuries in extremely hazardous
work. In 1923, Washington became one of only two states where workers pay a portion of the
insurance premiums.

Washington’s workers’ compensation insurance was provided solely through the State Fund,
managed by L&I, until 1971, when the Legislature created an option for qualified employers to
self-insure and expanded the scope of coverage to virtually all workers. The Self-Insurance
Program allows employers with sufficient financial resources to pay the cost of claims for their
injured workers from their own funds and assume significant responsibility for their own claims
administration. The workers of self-insured employers are entitled to the same rights and benefits
as those workers insured by the State Fund. There are approximately 356 employers who are self-
insured, covering close to one-quarter of all workers in Washington.

The State Fund offers an optional financial incentive program, called Retrospective Rating, to help
qualifying employers reduce their industrial insurance costs through safety and return-to-work
efforts. Employers who join the Retrospective Rating Program receive partial refunds if their claim
costs are lower than expected, but pay additional premiums if their claim costs are higher than
expected.

The State Fund Workers’ Compensation Program covers approximately 176,000 employers and
2.91 million workers statewide. Total premiums assessed in the State Fund during fiscal year 2017,
including both the employer and worker portions, were $2.62 billion. Over 94,000 claims were
accepted in fiscal year 2017; about 82 percent of these claims were for medical treatment only and
received no compensation for time off work or disability-related benefits. A monthly average of
37,166 claims were active during fiscal year 2017, and 15,865 of these claims were receiving time-
loss benefits, many of which involve long-term disability and complex medical issues. In fiscal
year 2017, vocational rehabilitation retraining plans were completed by 411 injured workers who
would not otherwise have been able to return to any type of work after injury.

BUDGET CYCLE

The Workers” Compensation Program operates as an enterprise fund made up of seven accounts
that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business entities. The budget operates
on a two-year cycle beginning on July 1 of each odd-numbered year. The biennial budget for
administering the program was appropriated and allotted through Washington State’s legislative
process. The final 2015-2017 appropriated budget for administering the Workers” Compensation
Program was $662,900,190, which included $597,675,000 that was appropriated to L&I and the
remainder for other state agencies. This budget included $17,842,000 of federal funds dedicated
to the Safety & Health Assessment & Research for Prevention (SHARP) Program, the Division of



Occupational Safety and Health (DOSH), and the L&1 Apprenticeship Program. The appropriated
administering budget for fiscal year 2017 for the Worker’s Compensation Program was
$340,408,286, and the portion of the total fiscal year 2017 budget for L&l was $309,752,000.

The benefit expense portions of the accounts that make up the program are non-appropriated and
non-allotted. Premiums collected from employers and workers and investment earnings finance
the cost of providing medical coverage, time-loss payments, and disability benefits to qualifying
individuals sustaining work-related injuries and illnesses, as well as Stay at Work reimbursements
and structured settlements.

LOCAL ECONOMY AND IMPACT ON LABOR & INDUSTRIES - FISCAL YEAR 2017

Washington is the thirteenth largest state in the U.S., with a population of 7.29 million,! and has
the fourteenth largest state economy of $476.55 billion.? It is comprised of eleven major
metropolitan areas and vast regions of wilderness and farmland. The Seattle/Tacoma/Bellevue
metropolitan area alone accounted for 60.1 percent of the state’s non-farm employment as of May
2017, and an even higher share of the state’s real Gross Domestic Product (GDP).

Workers’ compensation insurance covers all industries in the state of Washington. The economy
of Washington was once dominated by commercial airplane manufacturing (Boeing), logging, and
agriculture. More recently, a vibrant high-tech industry has developed, including worldwide
companies such as Microsoft and Amazon.com. Other Washington-based Fortune 500 companies
include Costco, Starbucks, Nordstrom, Weyerhaeuser, Paccar, and Expeditors.

CURRENT ECONOMIC SITUATION AND OUTLOOK

The U.S. economy expanded at an annualized rate of 3.5 percent in the first quarter of fiscal year
2017, but weakened to 2.1 percent and 1.4 percent in the second and third quarters.® The labor
market has also cooled with a three-month average, from March to May of 2017, of only 121,000
new jobs, far below the roughly 180,000 new jobs each month needed to keep up with the demand
in the labor force.*

Washington’s economy has performed well in the past few years, topping WalletHub’s list of
2017’s best state economies, with the state’s GDP growth and exports being the major factors.®
Real personal income in Washington was projected to grow 2.9 percent and 3.5 percent in 2017
and 2018, respectively.® The statewide unemployment rate improved by a full percentage point
from 5.5 percent in June 2016 to 4.5 percent in May 2017.” The jobless rate in the

1 “State Population Totals: 2010-2016”, U.S. Census Bureau, December 16, 2016.

2 “GDP by State, 2015:1-2016:1V”, Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA), May 11, 2017.

3 Quarterly Gross Domestic Product Report, BEA, June 29, 2017.

4 As of June 2, 2017, BLS.

5“2017’s Best & Worst State Economies,” WalletHub, June 5, 2017.

6 “Final June 2017 Fiscal Year Tables for Economic Forecast”, Washington State Economic and Revenue Forecast
Council (ERFC), June 20, 2017.

7 Historical resident Labor Force and Employment, ESD, June 28, 2017.



Seattle/Bellevue/Everett metropolitan area also further declined from 4.4 percent in June 2016 to
3.3 percent in May 2017.

Washington’s credit rating remains in good standing, thanks to a robust state economy and strong
financial management. The most current ratings by Moody’s, S&P, and Fitch all indicate the state’s
General Obligation Bonds as high quality (Aal/AA+/AA+) with a stable outlook.®

According to the June 2017 Wall Street Journal (WSJ) Economist Survey, there was a 15.8 percent
chance that the U.S. will be in a recession within the next 12 months, down from June 2016’s
estimate of 20.7 percent.® Over the next 5 years, the national economy will expand at a moderate
rate of 2.0 to 2.3 percent (Economic Revenue Forecast Council, June 2017). With regard to payroll
employment, both the U.S. and Washington will experience significantly slower job gains as the
national and state economies approach or have already approached full employment.©

Housing/Construction

The overall U.S. home sales continued to trend upward in fiscal year 2017. ** Monthly sales of new
single-family houses from July 2016 to May 2017 averaged a seasonally adjusted annual rate
(SAAR) of 594,000 units, much stronger than the averages of 480,000 and 522,000 units sold in
fiscal year 2015 and 2016 respectively.'? Existing home sales also grew at a faster pace in fiscal
year 2017. Compared to the average of 5.10 million and 5.35 million units (SAAR) in the previous
two years, sales of existing homes averaged 5.53 million from July 2016 to May 2017.2 The
average national home price remained resilient, with a 5.5 percent gain from April 2016 to April
2017.14

In fiscal year 2017, Washington State remained one of the strongest housing markets in the
country. Home prices across the state continued to rise faster than in any other state in recent
months, mainly driven by a robust demand and tight supply of houses on the market. According
to the CorelLogic report, Washington led all other states in home price gains in each of the last 6
months (December 2016- May 2017). In May 2017, Washington posted the largest average home
price inflation of all states, with a 12.6 percent year-over-year increase, followed by Utah (10.4
percent). The median home value in Washington has gone up 10.7 percent over the past year to
$334,000 as of May 31, 2017, and was predicted to rise another 5.9 percent in the next year.™ In
the Seattle/Tacoma/Bellevue metropolitan area, home prices rose even faster than the state

8 December 2016 Credit Rating Report, Washington State Treasurer. (http://www.tre.wa.gov/partners/for-
investors/debt-management/bond-ratings/).

9 Data Source: WSJ Economic Forecasting Survey. Forecast Edition: June 2017.
(http://projects.wsj.com/econforecast/#ind=recession&r=60&e=1496862492032).

10 Table 1.1 U.S. Economic Forecast Summary and Table 2.1 Washington Economic Forecast Summary: Forecast
2017 to 2021. June 2017 Economic forecast by ERFC.

11 As of July 6, 2017, the latest monthly data series for most housing /construction indicators was May 2017.
12 As of June 23, 2017: Census Bureau (https://www.census.gov/construction/nrs/index.html).

13 Data Source: http://www.realtor.org/topics/existing-home-sales.

14 Data Source: S&P/Case-Shiller U.S. National Home Price Index, Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis.

15 Data Source: http://www.zillow.com/wa/home-values/.
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https://www.census.gov/construction/nrs/index.html
http://www.realtor.org/topics/existing-home-sales
http://www.zillow.com/wa/home-values/

average, with a 12.9 percent gain from April 2016 to April 2017.® Building permits have also
risen at a faster clip across the state than the past few years.

Large Employers

The Boeing Company reported that its revenue for the quarter ended March 31, 2017, declined
seven percent to $20.98 billion, reflecting the timing of commercial and defense aircraft deliveries.
Its net earnings and core earnings per share, however, rose 28 percent and 16 percent, respectively,
compared with the same quarter a year earlier.!” Focusing on cost control and productivity
improvements, Boeing reduced its workforce significantly in the past few years from 175,742
employees in October 2012 to 144,081 employees in June 2017. Washington workers as a share
of total Boeing workforce also declined from 48.4 percent to 47.1 percent over the last year.®

Microsoft’s March 31, 2017, quarterly report showed an improvement in revenue from the same
quarter last year, rising from $20.53 billion to $22.09 billion.!® As of March 31, 2017, Microsoft
employed 45,535 in Washington State, approximately 37.5 percent of its 121,567 worldwide
workforce. The company announced at the end of June that it was planning to cut thousands of
jobs in the next year, largely in the sales department outside the U.S.?°

Amazon has announced its plan to create 100,000 full-time jobs in the U.S. over the next 18
months?! and another 5,000 new part-time, work-from-home jobs over the next year.?? The online
retail giant has created over 150,000 jobs in the U.S. over the last five years, growing its workforce
from 30,000 in 2011 to over 180,000 at the end of calendar year 2016.% In the first quarter of
calencgar year 2017, its sales increased 23 percent to $35.7 billion compared to the same quarter in
2016.%4

Small Businesses

Small business (1-49 employees) employment growth in the U.S. declined substantially in fiscal
year 2017. The ADP employment data revealed that only 58,000 new jobs were added by small
businesses each month in the fiscal year, well below the monthly average of 78,000 jobs created
in fiscal year 2015 and 2016.% The Small Business Optimism Index, however, managed to stay at
a historically high level from December 2016 to May 2017, as business owners remained
optimistic about regulatory reform, tax reform and a health care overhaul under the new
administration.?

16 Data Source: S&P/Case-Shiller WA-Seattle Home Price Index, Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis.

17 Data Source: Boeing Company 1% Quarter Earnings Report, April 26, 2017.

18 Data Source: http://www.boeing.com/company/general-info/index.page#/governance.

19 Data Source: https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/Investor/earnings/FY-2017-Q3/press-release-webcast.
20 Facts about Microsoft: https://news.microsoft.com/facts-about-microsoft/#uWDoOsLhMcb0xb08.97.
21 http://phx.corporate-ir.net/phoenix.zhtml?c=176060&p=irol-newsArticle&ID=2237110

22 http://phx.corporate-ir.net/phoenix.zhtml?c=176060&p=irol-newsArticle&ID=2260304.

23 Amazon pressroom: http://phx.corporate-ir.net/phoenix.zhtml?c=1760608&p=irol-news&nyo=0.

24 http://phx.corporate-ir.net/phoenix.zhtml?c=176060&p=irol-newsArticle&ID=2266665.

5 Data Source: ADP National Employment Report, July 7, 2017.

26 Data Source: NFIB Small Business Economic Trends-May 2017.
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http://phx.corporate-ir.net/phoenix.zhtml?c=176060&p=irol-newsArticle&ID=2266665

Small businesses in Washington and Seattle fared better than their counterparts in the first half of
fiscal year 2017, but have lost steam in the second half. According to the Paychex | IHS Small
Business Jobs report, Washington was at the top of the state index in the list of 20 largest states
when the year started but slipped to fourth place in May 2017. Similarly, Seattle topped the metro
index in small business employment growth as of December 2016 and has fallen to fifth place in
May 2017.%

Financial markets

The U.S. stock market had a strong year after 2016’s sluggish performance and reached historical
highs for all three major indices: Dow, S&P 500 and NASDAQ. The Dow surpassed the milestone
of 19,000 points on November 22, 2016, 20,000 points on January 25, 2017, and 21,000 points on
March 1, 2017, for the first time ever and ended up with a 3,419.64 point or 19.1 percent gain over
all of fiscal year 2017. The S&P 500 also gained 15.5 percent and surpassed the 2,400 mark.
NASDAQ closed at 6140.42 on the last day of the fiscal year, up 26.8 percent compared to the last
day of fiscal year 2016.%8

Mortgage rates rose at a moderate pace, but were still at historical low levels. The June 2017 rates
of 30-year and 15-year loans averaged 3.9 percent and 3.17 percent respectively, up from the
average of 3.57 percent and 2.84 percent when fiscal year 2016 ended.?® Treasury yields on bonds,
notes and bills also turned higher over the last year. On June 30, 2017, the average rates for 1-year,
5-year, 10-year, and 30-year treasury constant maturity series were up 79, 88, 82, and 54 basis
points from the same day in 2016, to end at 1.24 percent, 1.89 percent, 2.31 percent, and 2.84
percent, respectively.*°

Workers’ Compensation Impacts

Overall, the robust employment growth in Washington State in recent years has boded well for
workers’ compensation premium revenues. However, if slower job growth in the second half of
2017 continues, slower growth in premiums assessed will result. Workers’ compensation exposure
is also expected to increase at a slower pace because of this changing labor market condition;
however, both premium growth and exposure are also affected by business mix. If rates of growth
in high-risk industries outpace growth in other sectors, then premium growth and exposure may
outpace that of the overall labor market.

At the industry level, construction was one of the largest contributors to the job gains in
Washington, adding 10,900, or 23 percent, of total private nonfarm jobs into the state economy in
the first 11 months of fiscal year 2017.3* Construction was also projected to be the second-fastest-
growing industry in employment from 2015 to 2020, trailing only Information Technology.®2
While this may lead to higher total insurance premiums collected, it may also negatively impact

27 Data Source: http://www.paychex.com/jobs-index/index.aspx.

28 Data Source: Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis.

2% Data Source: The Freddie Mac Primary Mortgage Market Survey: http://www.freddiemac.com/pmms/.
30 pata Source: Treasury Constant Maturity data series, Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis.

31 Washington Employment Estimates, ESD, June 28, 2017.

32 Industry Employment Projections, ESD, June 2017.
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workers’ compensation costs, given the fact that the construction industry is normally associated
with a higher incidence rate and more severe injuries than most other industries.

Wage growth finally picked up in fiscal year 2017, translating into a larger increase in time-loss
and pension benefits for most workers injured on or before July 1, 2016. These benefits are
required to be recalculated each year to reflect the change in the state's average wage. In
Washington, the average annual wage increased 4.8 percent to $58,957 in 2016, the largest annual
gain since calendar year 2007.%3 Based on this rate, L&I increased time-loss and pension benefit
payments for eligible workers, effective July 1, 2017.

Medical inflation (based on the Consumer Price Index for medical care) also picked up in the first
few months of 2017 but appeared to taper off thereafter. The inflation index rose 4.9 percent for
the 12-month period ending September 2016, the largest annual gain since January 2008, but
slowed down to 2.7 percent from May 2016 to May 2017. Overall, the annual average growth rate
of 3.9 percent in the CPI for medical care for fiscal year 2017 was still the biggest jump in the past
9 years.® It is likely that increasing costs for medical care overall would affect medical costs in
Washington’s workers’ compensation system. However, if the recent downward trend holds, the
likelihood of this adverse impact is expected to lessen in the near future.

A stronger equity market will bring higher returns on investment for L&I and, therefore, strengthen
its financial stability and flexibility. Although equity accounted for only 12.9 percent of L&I’s
total investment assets,® a historically high stock market with all three major indices at record
highs had a substantial impact on the agency’s overall investment performance, especially on
helping to build up healthy contingency reserves, which the agency needs to protect against
unexpected large rate fluctuations in the future.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

In 2012, L&I adopted a 10-year plan to increase the contingency reserve to a target of 13 to 15
percent of State Fund liabilities, while reducing the rate used to discount pension liabilities from
6.5 to 4.5 percent by 2023. The “contingency reserve” refers to any surplus remaining (similar to
net position) on the statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the National
Association of Insurance Commissioners statutory accounting principles for the Industrial
Insurance Fund.

During fiscal year 2017, the contingency reserve balance changed from $1,493 million to $2,972
million, which was 21.8 percent of State Fund liabilities, and the discount rate was reduced from
6.3 to 6.2 percent. L&I’s goals for fiscal year 2018 include:

e Continue to reduce the pension discount rate with guidance from the Workers’
Compensation Advisory Committee

e Continue operational efficiencies to reduce costs through improved worker health and
return-to-work outcomes

33 Quarterly Census of Employment and Wages (QCEW), ESD, June 26, 2017.
34 Data Source: Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis.
35 Data Source: L&I Funds Statement of Net Position-As of June 30, 2017, Washington State Investment Board.



e Maintain an appropriate contingency reserve level while reducing future volatility

RELEVANT FINANCIAL POLICIES

L&I has an established investment policy designed to maintain solvency of the Workers’
Compensation Program’s accounts and to keep premium rates stable. The Washington State
Investment Board (WSIB) manages the L&I portfolio and meets regularly to make decisions on
improving investment results while striking a balance between risk and return.

On June 15, 2017, the investment policy was updated, reducing the amount allocated to fixed
income, while increasing the allocation to equities and adding real estate as an investment option.

Asset Allocation Target and Ranges

Fund Fixed Income Equity Real Estate
Accident Fund 80% 6 15% 4 5% +2
Pension Reserve Fund 85% x5 10% =3 5% +2
Medical Aid Fund 75% =7 20% +£5 5% +2
Supplemental Pension Fund 100% 0% 0%

A gradual implementation plan has been adopted. The global equity and fixed income holdings
are expected to reach their targets over a period of 2.5 years while real estate will take seven years
or longer, given liquidity constraints of the asset class. If real estate, due to timing or illiquidity, is
above or below its target, fixed income will be used to offset the balance.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

The Department of Labor & Industries covers many workplace and safety issues, all of which fall
within three primary lines of business: prevention, recovery, and the support for each.

Prevention: L&I works to prevent the things that threaten the lives and livelihoods of the people
who live and work in Washington from happening. It covers workplace injuries and fatalities, the
failure of equipment we regulate, violations of worker’s wage and labor rights, and fraud.

Recovery: When something does go wrong on the job, L&I strives to ensure remediation and
recovery - working to make people, workplaces, and communities whole again. Success in
recovery means that those who are injured get reconnected to the workforce as quickly as possible,
those who are wronged get speedy relief, and those who wronged them pay the right penalty or
make restitution.

Support: The vital link between striving for prevention and providing recovery assistance as
needed is L&I support-people, processes, and technology-that make the other two lines of business

go.
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Together, these lines of business provide key guidance and direction as the agency prepares to
better serve its customers of the future through its Business Transformation initiative. The goal is
to project the needs and service preferences of future customers in technology, accessibility, and
service, and then adapt in advance to prepare for those needs. The L&l Leadership Team has
selected six transformation projects to advance during the 2017-19 biennium:

Replace the workers’ compensation computer systems

Redesign the L& website

Develop an agencywide information and data strategy

Complete a thorough assessment of L&I’s IT capabilities and needs
Deploy customer incentives to get results

Connect customers with L&I employees (foster better understanding)

oakrwdE

Many of these transformational projects replacing the workers’ compensation computer systems,
will likely take multiple biennia to complete.

In 2011, the Legislature directed Joint Legislative Audit and Review Committee (JLARC) staff to
conduct a performance audit of workers’ compensation claims management. In 2015, the JLARC
concluded that efforts to help workers return to work promptly and safely could be improved.
JLARC made the following recommendations which L&I is working to implement:

e L&I should institute standards for early phone contact, claims management planning, and
clear documentation in claims management.

e L&l should expand its pilot programs and enhance its claims management support systems
(training, performance measures, and technology) with a focus on return to work.

L&I continues to measure specific categories of its work. Governor Jay Inslee directed state
agencies to measure performance, improvements, innovation, engagement, transparency and
accountability in state government. In response, L&I maintains focus on five goals:

Make workplaces safe

Help injured workers heal and return to work

Make it easy to do business with L&l

Help honest workers and businesses by cracking down on the dishonest ones
Ensure L&I is an employer of choice

orwdPE

L&I has made great strides in its goal to make workplaces safe by reducing the rate of injury and
fatality by fostering a culture of safety. Washington had the nation’s lowest construction fatality
rate in 2015, the latest year for which complete data is available, improving from being ninth-rated
the previous-year, this at a time when the construction industry was booming in our state. Overall,
Washington had the third-lowest worker fatality rate in the country®® and reduced the occupational
illness and injury rate by about one-third. L&I has been instrumental in these achievements.

36 2015 Washington state work-related fatalities report, WA Fatality Assessment & Control Evaluation
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L&I is a national leader in helping injured workers heal and return to work, with innovative
incentives and return-to-work programs. The agency is well-respected among other states and in
the industry, leading to three L&I leaders recently being appointed to committees of the
International Association of Industrial Accident Boards and Commissions. This reflects L&I’s
commitment to create a culture in which employers, workers, medical providers, vocational
experts, and L&I staff focus on maintaining the workers’ connection to the workforce, along with
their motivation to return to work. This culture, combined with quality medical services and
operational efficiencies, saves employers money - an estimated $839 million in reduced benefit
liabilities over the past three fiscal years. Through these programs and initiatives, long-term
disability rates are down 18 percent in Washington since 2012. Return-to-work services are now
provided, on average, 100 days earlier than in 2012; the proportion of workers who return to work
through earlier services is 91 percent higher than in the past. L&I promotes high quality, evidence-
based care and is a national leader in reducing chronic opioid use, which is down to about one
percent of incoming time-loss claims. These and other measures help to control health care cost
growth, which was about 2.8 percent for fiscal year 2017.

L&TI’s direct deposit and debit card options for injured workers continued to help make it easier to
do business with L&I. Other improvements are having a similar impact. Improvements to L&I’s
provider hotline reduced wait times by 92 percent, dropped abandoned calls by 54 percent, and cut
turnaround time in half for service authorizations. L&I’s agencywide initiative to serve limited-
English-proficiency customers includes mandatory staff training on using a telephone interpreter
service when necessary, and all bilingual employees have been tested for oral proficiency. This
commitment to customers whose English skills are limited aims to make it easier to do business
with L&l in any language.

L&I is cracking down on unscrupulous business practices with improved methods of identifying
illegal activities. The agency is working with the Washington State Attorney General’s Office to
step up criminal and civil enforcement, especially cases of wage theft. L&I investigations resulted
in returning more than $4.1 million in wages to workers last fiscal year ($3.3 million in wage/hour
and $0.8 million in prevailing wages). L&I is also continuing efforts to identify and hold
accountable all workers, providers and businesses that defraud the workers’ compensation system.
For every dollar spent on workers’ compensation fraud prevention, $11.45 was returned. The jump
of more than $2.50 from the previous fiscal year is due to collecting more late premiums, fines and
penalties, while reducing operating costs.

Ensuring L&I is an employer of choice focuses on providing a culture of trust while developing
opportunities for workplace flexibility, such as alternative schedules and telework options. Since
October 2016, the Infants at Work pilot program tested the option to provide additional flexibility
options for new families. L& made great strides in telework in fiscal year 2017, completing eight
pilot projects from a wide variety of programs in the agency, and increasing official participation
from 65 in February 2016 to about 300 by May of 2017. L&I remains committed to using Lean to
empower employees to make decisions that affect their work. Employee-led Lean projects have
reduced time for claim processing, improved relationships with customers, streamlined our
collections process, and reduced burden on staff. Participation in wellness initiatives is brisk
among the agency’s employees, with more than 5,000 sign-ups for various events in agencywide
wellness campaigns in calendar year 2016. L&I also added a lactation room, expanded onsite
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nutritional food options, and increased engagement in the SmartHealth wellness platform to 67
percent of the workforce.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to L&I for its CAFR for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. A copy of the Certificate of Achievement is included in the
introductory section of the CAFR. This was the seventh consecutive year that L&I received this
prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must
publish an easy-to-read and efficiently-organized CAFR. This report must satisfy both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements, and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

As in the work and service we provide every day, this CAFR represents our commitment to
maintain excellence in financial reporting, and the financial statements are in conformance with
the highest standards of financial accountability. The preparation of this report could not have been
accomplished without the professionalism and dedication demonstrated by the financial and
management personnel of L&I, the Washington State Office of Financial Management, and the
Washington State Investment Board.

Sincerely,

W .

Joel Sacks

Director Deputy Director for
Financial Management
/fC Vicreqt

Victdria Kennedy — ° e
Assistant Director for
Insurance Services
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Executive Director/CEO
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State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program
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Pat McCarthy

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

October 20, 2017

Joel Sacks, Director

Workers Compensation Program
Department of Labor and Industries
Olympia, Washington

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Workers Compensation Program, an
enterprise fund of the state of Washington, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Program’s basic financial statements as
listed on the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the Labor and Industries’ Funds of the state of Washington as managed
by the Washington State Investment Board, which include the Program’s investments and related
investment income as discussed in Note 3. These investments represent 93.7 percent, and 17 percent,
respectively, of the assets and total revenues of the Program. Those financial statements were audited by
other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for the Workers” Compensation Program of the state of Washington, is based solely on
the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material

Insurance Building, P.O. Box 40021 ¢ Olympia, Washington 98504-0021 ¢ (360) 902-0370 ¢ Pat.McCarthy@sao.wa.gov
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misstatement. The financial statements of the Labor and Industries’ Funds were not audited in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Program’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Program’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Workers Compensation
Program, an enterprise fund of the state of Washington, as of June 30, 2017, and the changes in financial
position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Matters of Emphasis

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Workers Compensation Program, an enterprise
fund of the state of Washington, are intended to present the financial position, and the changes in
financial position, and where applicable, cash flows of only the respective portion of the activities of the
state of Washington that is attributable to the transactions of the Program. They do not purport to, and do
not, present fairly the financial position of the state of Washington as of June 30, 2017, the changes in its
financial position, or where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified
with respect to this matter.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, and required supplementary information as listed in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Program’s basic financial statements as a whole. The Combining and Individual
Account Financial Schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. This information has been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, based on our audit,
the procedures performed as described above, and the report of other auditors, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The information identified in the table of contents as the Independent Actuarial Opinion and the
Introductory and Statistical Sections, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements of the Program. Such information has not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue our report dated October 20, 2017,
on our consideration of the Program’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
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accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Program’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Sincerely,

%t

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA
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State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Our management’s discussion and analysis of the state of Washington Workers” Compensation
Program’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report provides an overview of the Workers’
Compensation Program’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. The
information included here should be considered along with the transmittal letter, which can be
found on pages 3-13 of this report, and the accompanying basic financial statements and notes to
the basic financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

e Total assets and deferred outflows of resources increased $871 million from the prior fiscal
year, mainly due to increases in investments of $819 million and an increase in receivables
of $72 million, offset by a decrease in security lending collateral of $21 million.

e Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources increased $801 million from the prior
year. The increase is largely due to increases in claims payable of $788 million and
recognition of additional net state employee pension liability of $26 million, offset by a
decrease in securities lending collateral of $21 million.

e Total revenues earned decreased $122 million from the prior year, mainly due to unrealized
losses on fixed income securities. Increases in net premiums and unrealized gains on
equities partially offset the revenue decrease.

e Total expenses incurred increased $30 million from the prior year, primarily due to a $13
million increase in claims expense and $12 million increase in miscellaneous expenses.

e Total net deficit decreased $71 million from the prior year, mainly due to the increase in
premiums offset by the unrealized losses on fixed income securities.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

The Workers” Compensation Program is accounted for as an enterprise fund of the state of
Washington, reporting business activities under the accrual basis of accounting, much like a private
business enterprise.

These basic financial statements report the financial condition and results of operations for seven
accounts: the Accident, Medical Aid, Pension Reserve, Supplemental Pension, Second Injury,
Self-Insured Employer Overpayment Reimbursement Accounts, and the Industrial Insurance
Rainy Day Fund, known collectively as the Workers’ Compensation Program. The Accident,
Medical Aid, Pension Reserve Accounts, and the Industrial Insurance Rainy Day Fund represent
the Workers’ Compensation Program Industrial Insurance Fund, or Basic Plan.
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State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program

For the fiscal year ended on June 30, 2017, the basic financial statements show financial position
and results of operations at the roll-up level. Detailed financial information for the individual
accounts can be found in the Supplementary Information section on pages 95-98 of this report.

This discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the Workers” Compensation Program’s
basic financial statements, which consist of the following components:

The Statement of Net Position presents information on the program’s assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position. It reflects the program’s
financial position as of June 30, 2017. It can be found on page 37 of this report.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position shows how the program’s net
position changed during the fiscal year. It presents both operating and non-operating revenues and
expenses for the fiscal year. It can be found on page 38 of this report.

The Statement of Cash Flows reflects cash collections and cash payments to arrive at the net
increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the fiscal year. It can be found on page
39 of this report.

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of the basic financial statements
and provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the information
provided in the Workers’ Compensation Program’s financial statements. They can be found on
pages 41-84 of this report.
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State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program

Financial Analysis of the Workers’ Compensation Program

Statement of Net Position
(dollars in millions)

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 $ Change % Change

Assets

Current assets $ 1,678 $ 2,662 $ (984) (37.0%)
DOE assets, noncurrent 5 5 - 0.0%
Investments, noncurrent 15,755 13,910 1,845 13.3%
Capital assets, net 65 67 (2) (3.0%)
Total Assets 17,503 16,644 859 5.2%
Deferred outflows of resources 37 25 12 48.0%
Liabilities

Current liabilities 2,348 2,330 18 0.8%
Noncurrent liabilities 24.836 24,037 799 3.3%
Total Liabilities 27,184 26,367 817 3.1%
Deferred inflows of resources 3 19 (16)  (84.2%)
Net Position (Deficit)

Investment in capital assets 65 67 @) (3.0%)
Unrestricted (9,712) (9,785) 73 (0.7%)

Total Net Position (Deficit) $ (9,647) $ (9,718) $ 71 (0.7%)

Current assets - Current assets decreased by $984 million during fiscal year 2017, largely due to
decreases in current investments and securities lending collateral offset by an increase in
receivables. Current investments decreased by $1,027 million due to fixed income securities held
having later maturity dates than those held in the prior year. Securities lending collateral decreased
because demand for borrowing securities decreased. Receivables increased due to more hours
reported by employers and a premium rate increase in the Accident Account.

Noncurrent investments - Noncurrent investments increased during fiscal year 2017 by $1,845
million, mainly due to increases of $472 million in fixed income securities, $340 million in equity
investments, and $1,027 million that moved from current investments to noncurrent investments
as discussed above.

Total fiscal year 2017 current and noncurrent investments of $16,406 million increased $819

million, or 5.3 percent, when compared to the prior year. The most significant changes in the total
investment balance are from the following:
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State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program

e Fixed income securities increased by $472 million compared to fiscal year 2016.
Additional fixed income investments were purchased from interest income and realized
gains. Interest income of $483 million accounts for most of this increase. The average
coupon rate at June 30, 2017, ranged from 3.1 to 3.7 percent. This was a significant
decrease from the prior year average coupon rates that ranged from 3.5 to 4.0 percent. This
resulted in unrealized losses in fixed income securities.

e Equities increased $340 million due to net realized and unrealized gains. Currently, the
Workers' Compensation Program equity investments are split 52 percent U.S. and 48
percent non-U.S. During fiscal year 2017, equities returned 19.2 percent compared to the
negative 2.4 percent return in fiscal year 2016.

Current liabilities - Current liabilities, other than claims payable, decreased during fiscal year
2017 by $7 million, mainly due to the decrease of $21 million in security lending collateral offset
by increases in accounts payable and accrued liabilities that total $14 million. Accrued liabilities
increased $10 million, mainly due to an increase in the retrospective rating liability, as compared
to fiscal year 2016. The fiscal year 2017 retrospective rating liability is higher due to the increases
in reported hours and premium rates.

Claims payable - Claims payable liabilities include benefit and claims administration expense
liabilities. Claims payable, included in current and noncurrent liabilities, was $26,641 million at
the end of fiscal year 2017, an increase of $788 million, or 3.0 percent, when compared to the
previous fiscal year. This increase is primarily due to a net increase in benefit liabilities. Benefit
liabilities increased $794 million, as shown by the table below:

Schedule of Changes in Benefit Liabilities (Included in Claims Payable) *

(in millions)
June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016

Benefit liabilities, beginning of year $ 25239 % 24,492
New liabilities incurred, current year 1,903 1,891
Development on prior years

Change in reserve discount 735 527

Change in discount rate 44 34

Other development on prior liabilities 200 373
Claim payments (2,088) (2,078)
Change in benefit liabilities 794 747
Benefit liabilities, end of year $ 26,033 $ 25,239

* Excludes claims administration expense liabilities
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State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program

It is expected that benefit liabilities will change every year due to normal activities, such as adding
the current accident year liabilities, discounting existing liabilities, and paying claims. This fiscal
year, benefit liabilities increased mainly as a result of the following:

The liabilities in the Supplemental Pension Account increased $1,045 million. The
Supplemental Pension Fund provides for the Cost-of-Living Adjustments (COLA) on
workers’ compensation time loss and pension benefit payments for injured workers insured
through both the State Fund and self-insurance programs. The COLA calculation is based
on the State’s Average Annual Wage published by Washington State Employment Security
Department, which increased 4.77 percent in 2016, much higher than the 2.52 percent
expected.

The Workers’ Compensation Program has developed a plan to reduce the pension discount
rate from 6.5 percent to 4.5 percent by 2023. The pension discount rate was reduced from
6.3 to 6.2 percent in fiscal year 2017, which increased the Pension Reserve liability
estimate by $44 million.

These increases were partially offset by net decreases in benefit liabilities from new
information on previously-estimated liabilities. The Accident Account benefit liabilities
were lower due to fewer active time loss claims, as well as permanent partial disability
awards having fewer awards and lower-than-estimated average award amounts. The
Medical Aid Account had lower-than-expected claim counts and lower-than-anticipated
medical payments.

Total net position (deficit) - The Workers’ Compensation Program’s deficit decreased $71
million during fiscal year 2017, ending the year with a deficit balance of $9,647 million. This
deficit consists of a $13,063 million deficit in the Supplemental Pension Account, offset by net
position balances in the other Workers’ Compensation Program accounts, which increased as a
result of investment activities. Additional detail regarding the Supplemental Pension Account
deficit can be found in Note 8 of this report.
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State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program

Changes in Net Position
(dollars in millions)
Fiscal Year Ended  Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2017 June 30,2016 $ Change % Change

Operating Revenues

Premiums and assessments, net $ 2,698 $ 2516 $ 182 7.2%

Miscellaneous revenue 61 58 3 5.2%
Total Operating Revenues 2,759 2,574 185 7.2%
Nonoperating Revenues

Earnings on investments 551 858 (307) (35.8%)

Other revenues 9 9 - 0.0%
Total Revenues 3,319 3,441 (122)  (3.5%)
Operating Expenses

Salaries and wages 161 160 1 0.6%

Employee benefits 69 63 6 9.5%

Personal services 6 8 (2) (25.0%)

Goods and services 82 82 - 0.0%

Travel 4 4 - 0.0%

Claims 2,887 2,874 13 0.5%

Depreciation 10 10 - 0.0%

Miscellaneous expenses 50 38 12 31.6%
Total Operating Expenses 3,269 3,239 30 0.9%
Nonoperating Expenses

Interest expense - - - -
Total Expenses 3,269 3,239 30 0.9%
Income (Loss) before Transfers 50 202 (152)  (75.2%)
Net Transfers - - - 0.0%
Change in Net Position (Deficit) 50 202 (152) (75.2%)
Net Position (Deficit) - Beginning of Year* (9,697) (9,920) 223 (2.2%)
Net Position (Deficit) - End of Year $ (9,647) $ (9,718) $ 71 0.7%

*Net Position (Deficit) — Beginning of Year for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 is restated.

Premiums and assessments, net - Net premium and assessment revenues during fiscal year 2017
were $2,698 million compared to $2,516 million for fiscal year 2016, an increase of $182 million.
This increase resulted from additional hours reported by employers and premium rate increases in
the Accident Account, effective January 1, 2016 and 2017. In fiscal year 2016, employers reported
3,681 million hours worked; this figure increased to 3,837 million hours for fiscal year 2017. There
has been a steady growth of quarterly standard premiums for 25 quarters since March 31, 2011.
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State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program

Earnings on investments - The earnings on investments decreased $307 million from the prior
fiscal year mainly as explained below:

Significant Changes in Investment Activity*
(dollars in millions)

June 30, 2017 June 30,2016 $ Change % Change

Fixed Income

Interest earnings $ 483 $ 503 $ (20) (4.0%)

Realized gains and losses 104 65 39 60.0%

Unrealized gains and losses (369) 325 (694) (213.5%)
Fixed Income Total 218 893 (675)  (75.6%)
Equities

Realized gains and losses 1 74 (73)  (98.6%)

Unrealized gains and losses 338 (105) 443  (421.9%)
Equities Total 339 (31) 370 (1193.5%)
Total Fixed Income and Equities $ 557 $ 862 $ (305)  (35.4%)

*The above does not include investment expenses.

e Interest earnings decreased due to the decrease in coupon rate from fiscal year 2016 to
fiscal year 2017. As bonds mature, they are reinvested in fixed income securities with
lower coupon rates because interest rates have decreased.

e Fixed income realized gains increased mostly due to the sale of $900 million in fixed
income securities in order to shorten duration targets to align with the new asset
allocation policy.

e Fixed income unrealized gains decreased due to rising interest rates. The fair market
value of debt securities moves in the opposite direction to changes in interest rates.
Rising interest rates result in decreasing bond market prices, while falling rates cause
bond prices to increase.

e Equity realized gains decreased compared to the prior fiscal year due to the sale of

equities to rebalance the portfolio in fiscal year 2016. Equity unrealized gains increased
due to the strong stock market.
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State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program

The following chart provides additional detail on the distribution of revenues by source during
fiscal year 2017:

Fiscal Year 2017 Revenues by Source

Operating Grants

and Miscellaneous

Revenue
2.1%

Investment Earnings
16.6%

——— Premiums
81.3%

Claims expense - Claims expense for fiscal year 2017 increased $13 million, or 0.5 percent, as
compared to fiscal year 2016. Claims expense includes two main components: payments to
beneficiaries and the change in claims payable.

Claim payments to beneficiaries increased by $10 million, or 0.5 percent, when compared to the
prior year, which accounts for most of the increase in claims expense. Increases in the Medical
Aid Account and Pension Reserve Account were partially offset by decreases in the Accident
Account and the Supplemental Pension Accounts. The net increase is explained by the following:

e The Medical Aid Account’s $13 million increase in claim payments to beneficiaries
resulted mainly from an increase in exposure and medical inflation.

e The Pension Reserve Account’s claim payments to beneficiaries increased $19 million,
mostly because of higher numbers of pensioners receiving benefits, together with higher
average monthly benefits.

e The Accident Account’s $14 million decrease in claim payments to beneficiaries resulted
primarily from fewer active time-loss claims.

e The Supplemental Pension Account’s claim payments to beneficiaries decreased by $8

million. The decrease is mainly the result of last year’s claim payments being higher due
to implementing a court decision and an increase in the state’s average annual wage.
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State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program

Operating expenses - Operating expenses for fiscal year 2017, other than claims expense, were
$382 million as compared to $364 million in fiscal year 2016, an $18 million, or 4.7 percent,
increase. Higher operating expenses in fiscal year 2017 resulted mainly from increases in state
employee benefits and miscellaneous expenses. State employee benefits increased mainly due to
a $4.5 million increase in the state employee pension expense. The increase in miscellaneous
expenses is due primarily to an $11 million increase in bad debt expense. One third of the bad debt
expense increase is due to an increase in premium receivables caused by an increase in hours
reported and a rate increase, as discussed above. The remaining two-thirds increase in bad debt
expense is due to an increase in normal business activities, including waivers, adjustments and
making accounts uncollectable after exhausting all legal means of collection.

The following chart provides additional detail on the distribution of operating expenses by type
during fiscal year 2017:

Fiscal Year 2017 Operating Expenses by Type

Salaries and Wages
4.9%

Goods and Services
2.5%

Employee Benefits
2.1%

Miscellaneous
1.6%

\ Depreciation

0.3%

Claims
88.3%

Personal Services

0.2%
Travel

0.1%

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets - Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, as of June 30, 2017, was $65
million. This reflects a net decrease of $2 million from the previous year. This net decrease is due
mainly to an increase in accumulated depreciation resulting from prior year costs incurred for
internally-developed software that are now being depreciated. Additional information on capital
assets can be found in Note 1.D.6 and Note 6 of this report.
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State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program

Potentially Significant Matters with Future Impacts

In order to maintain the actuarial solvency of the funds while keeping reasonable limits on rate
fluctuations, L&l had a nine-year plan to steadily rebuild the Industrial Insurance Fund
contingency reserve (similar to net position) to a range between 13 and 15 percent of liabilities
(less securities lending obligations). “Contingency reserve” refers to any surplus remaining on the
statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners statutory accounting principles for the Industrial Insurance Fund. L&I’s goal for
fiscal year 2017 was to increase the contingency reserve balance from $1,455 million to $1,583
million by increasing rates and reducing costs by $35 to $70 million. The contingency reserve goal
was met during fiscal year 2017, with the contingency reserve ending at $2,971 million, or 21.8
percent of liabilities. L&I’s plan for fiscal year 2018 is to maintain the contingency reserve balance
by continuing to operate efficiently.

The Workers’ Compensation Program also has a plan to reduce the pension discount rate from 6.5
percent to 4.5 percent by 2023. Over the past three fiscal years, the pension discount rate was
reduced from 6.5 to 6.2 percent. In fiscal year 2018, L&I and the Workers’ Compensation
Advisory Council members will continue the discussion of future reduction of the discount rate.
Each tenth of a percent that the pension discount rate drops, the contingency reserve decreases an
estimated $29 to $32 million.

The Workers’ Compensation Program has many computer systems used for paying benefits and
collecting premiums. Many of the systems were built over thirty years ago and the agency has a
goal to replace these systems before they turn forty. The focus for the next year will be to analyze
the business requirements for the new system(s).

Reinsurance is insurance for insurance companies. L&I is currently looking into purchasing
reinsurance to mitigate losses resulting from a catastrophic event. An intermediary has been hired
to determine whether reinsurance is an option for L&l.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide a general overview of the Workers” Compensation Program and
illustrate the program’s financial condition to interested parties. If you have questions about this
report or need additional financial information, please contact the Chief Accounting Officer at the
Department of Labor & Industries, P.O. Box 44833, Olympia, Washington 98504-4833.

In accordance with the Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 51.44.115, L&l also publishes a
Statutory Financial Information Report for the Industrial Insurance Fund (State Fund) annually.
This report is prepared in compliance with statutory accounting practices and principles.

The Workers’ Compensation Program Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and Statutory
Financial Information Report for the Industrial Insurance Fund are also available at L&I’s website
at http://www.Ini.wa.gov/Claimsins/Insurance/Learn/StateFund/Reports/.
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State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2017

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
DOE trust cash and investments
Collateral held under securities lending agreements
Receivables, net of allowance
Receivables from other state accounts and agencies
Receivables from other governments
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets

DOE trust receivable

Investments, noncurrent

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows from pensions
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Deposits payable
Accrued liabilities
Obligations under securities lending agreements
Payable to other state accounts and agencies
Due to other governments
Unearned revenues
DOE trust liabilities
Claims payable, current
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities

Claims payable, net of current portion

Other long-term liabilities

DOE trust long-term liabilities

Other post-employment benefits

Net pension liability for employee retirement plans
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows from pensions

NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total Net Position (Deficit)
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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35,025,529
651,042,902
653,905
94,318,059
893,084,598
60,405
1,351,540
176,590
1,605,138

1,677,318,666

4,939,668
15,755,192,748
65,149,293

15,825,281,709

17,502,600,375

36,559,677

17,539,160,052

8,710,818
7,769,463
192,652,472
94,318,059
6,069,287
1,860
1,844,718
645,000
2,035,874,000

2,347,885,677

24,604,664,000
7,345,204
4,948,573
63,456,000
155,439,202

24,835,852,979

27,183,738,656

2,526,028

65,149,293
(9,712,253,925)

(9,647,104,632)

17,539,160,052




State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

OPERATING REVENUES
Premiums and assessments, net of refunds

Miscellaneous revenue

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Personal services
Goods and services
Travel

Claims
Depreciation

Miscellaneous expenses
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Earnings on investments

Other revenues

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income Before Transfers

Transfers out

Change in Net Position

Net Position (Deficit) at July 1

Prior Period Adjustment

Net Position (Deficit) - July 1, as restated (see Note 2)
Net Position (Deficit) - June 30

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$  2,697,735,066
61,238,696

2,758,973,762

160,502,557
68,547,415
5,686,473
82,024,988
3,867,455
2,887,423,417
9,850,524
51,548,263

3,269,451,092

(510,477,330)

551,367,236
9,186,287

560,553,523

50,076,193
(192,000)

49,884,193

(9,717,572,421)
20,583,596

(9,696,988,825)

$ (9,647,104,632)




State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to/for beneficiaries
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers
Other
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

CASHFLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers out
Operating grants received
License fees collected

Net Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisitions of capital assets
Net Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net sales of trust investments
Receipt of interest and dividends
Investment expenses
Proceeds fromsale of investment securities
Purchases of investment securities

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash & cash equivalents, July 1 (includes trust cash of $210,003)
Cash & cash equivalents, June 30 (includes trust cash of $653,905)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income

to Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Depreciation

Change in Assets: Decrease (Increase)
Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses

Change in Liabilities: Increase (Decrease)
Claims and judgments payable
Accrued liabilities

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

NON CASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in fair value of investments

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2,614,152,843
(2,097,324,111)
(221,026,194)
(86,544,202)

56,569,288

265,827,624

(192,000)
9,099,964
120,345

9,028,309

(7,557,537)

(7,557,537)

443,902
485,886,388
(5,235,240)
7,176,307,478
(7,932,791,640)

(275,389,112)

(8,090,716)
43,770,150

35,679,434

(510,477,330)

9,850,524

(55,445,707)
24,090
368,319

788,020,426
33,487,302

265,827,624

(31,278,477)
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State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying basic financial statements of the Workers’ Compensation Program of the state
of Washington were prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). The Washington State Office of Financial Management (OFM) is the primary authority
for the Workers’ Compensation Program accounting and reporting requirements. OFM has
adopted the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which is
the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles nationwide. Following is a summary of the significant accounting policies:

1.A. Reporting Entity

The Department of Labor & Industries (L&I), an agency of Washington State and a part of the
primary government, administers and enforces laws and regulations in accordance with Titles 43
and 51 of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW) and Title 296 of the Washington Administrative
Code (WAC). The provisions of Title 51 RCW require all employers, unless excluded or
exempted, to secure coverage for job-related injuries and illnesses either by paying insurance
premiums to the Workers’ Compensation Program or by self-insuring. Direct private insurance is
not authorized, although self-insurers are permitted to reinsure up to 80 percent of their obligations.

The Workers’ Compensation Fund is classified as an enterprise fund of the state of Washington.
The accompanying basic financial statements present only the activity of the Workers’
Compensation Program and do not present the financial position, results of operations, or cash
flows of L&I or the state of Washington. The Workers” Compensation Program’s financial report
is included in the basic financial statements of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the
state of Washington. A copy of the report may be obtained from the Statewide Accounting Division
of the Office of Financial Management at P.O. Box 43127, Olympia, WA 98504-3127. A copy
can also be obtained from the OFM website at http://ofm.wa.gov/cafr.

1.B. Basic Financial Statements

The Workers’ Compensation Fund consists of the following seven enterprise accounts:

The Accident Account, established on July 1, 1947, per RCW 51.44.010, pays compensation
directly to injured workers for lost wages during temporary disability and for permanent partial
disability awards. It also pays costs for vocational retraining and for structured settlements. In
addition, the Accident Account pays to the Pension Reserve Account the present value of pensions
awarded to the surviving spouse or dependent of fatally injured workers and workers who are
permanently and totally disabled.

Revenues for this account come from employer-paid premiums based on individual employers’
reported payroll hours and are reported net of refunds. Employers may elect to have their premiums
retrospectively rated, with an annual adjustment for three years following the plan year, based on
individual employers’ actual losses incurred. This may result in either a refund of premiums paid
or an assessment of additional premiums due. The premium adjustment calculation considers both
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the Accident and Medical Aid Accounts’ experience and premiums together. However,
retrospective premium adjustments are financed entirely through the Accident Account.

On behalf of injured workers, the Medical Aid Account, established on July 1, 1917, per RCW
51.44.020, pays for the cost of medical services, vocational rehabilitation services, and Stay at
Work reimbursements. Revenues for this account come mostly from equal contributions from
employers and employees; employers are required to withhold half of their medical aid premium
from their employees’ wages.

The Pension Reserve Account pays benefits to the surviving spouse or dependent of fatally injured
workers and to all permanently and totally disabled workers. This includes benefits for pensions
awarded to employees of self-insured employers. Funding for pension payments is generated by
transfers from the Accident and Second Injury Accounts and reimbursements from self-insured
employers. The funds are invested in securities to cover payments for the expected life of the
injured worker or survivor(s).

The Industrial Insurance Rainy Day Fund was created by the Legislature during the 2011 session
to hold transfers from the Accident and Medical Aid Accounts when assets for those accounts
combined are between 10 and 30 percent in excess of their funded liabilities. Primarily, the balance
in this account will be used to reduce future rate increases or aid businesses in recovering from or
during economic recessions. This account was first used in fiscal year 2017. Additional
information can be found in Note 12 of this report.

The four accounts described above are referred to as the Industrial Insurance Fund, the Workers’
Compensation Program Basic Plan, or the State Fund. The Accident, Medical Aid, and Pension
Reserve Accounts are maintained on an actuarially solvent basis; however, a cash flow basis is
used for the surety bond components of the Pension Reserve Account. Self-insured employers
have the option to guarantee pension-related benefits with a surety bond or to fund the benefits
with cash.

The Supplemental Pension Account provides for a supplemental cost-of-living adjustment
(COLA) to injured workers and their dependents receiving disability payments. Per RCW
51.32.073, this account operates on a current payment basis, and no assets are allowed to
accumulate for the future servicing of claim payments.

COLA and time-loss payment increases are based on the increase in the state’s average wage
during the preceding calendar year and become effective in July of the following fiscal year.
Revenues for COLA payments arise from assessments to State-Fund-insured and self-insured
employers; half of the assessment is deducted from their employees’ wages.

The Second Injury Account is used to pay pension costs on claims where a permanent total
disability is at least partially caused by a prior injury and to fund job modifications for some
temporarily-disabled workers. It is funded by self-insured assessments for self-insured pension
claims, transfers from the Accident Account to the Pension Reserve Account for State-Fund-
insured pensions, and transfers from the Medical Aid Account to pay for job modification and
other claims. An allowance for future second injury benefit payments is contained within the
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Accident and Medical Aid Accounts’ claims liabilities for State-Fund-insured claims. Therefore,
the Second Injury Account does not carry any claims liabilities.

The Self-Insured Employer Overpayment Reimbursement Account reimburses self-insured
employers for benefits overpaid during the pendency of board or court appeals in which the self-
insured employer prevails and has not recovered. The revenue for this account comes from self-
insured employer assessments.

L&I presents the following basic financial statements: Statement of Net Position; Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and the Statement of Cash Flows.

Statement of Net Position — This statement presents assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources for the Workers’ Compensation Program in order of
liquidity. Net position is classified into three categories:

e Net investments in capital assets — Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets.

e Restricted — Consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources related to those assets.

e Unrestricted — Consists of the net amount of assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of
net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net position.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — This statement presents the
activity and changes in net position of the Workers’ Compensation Program. Activity is
distinguished between operating and non-operating revenues and expenses.

Operating revenues for the Workers’ Compensation Program consist mainly of premiums and
assessments collected, net of refunds. Operating expenses consist of claims paid to covered
individuals, claims adjustment expenses, and administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating, including interest expense and
investment gains and losses.

Statement of Cash Flows — This statement reports cash collections and payments for the Workers’
Compensation Program to arrive at the net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents for
the fiscal year.

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management

to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the basic financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
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1.C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus describes the types of transactions and events reported in an account’s
operating statement. The Workers’ Compensation Program’s seven accounts are accounted for
using the economic resources measurement focus, much like that of a private-sector business. With
this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operations of the accounts are
included in the Statement of Net Position. Operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues)
and decreases (i.e., expenses) in total net position with a focus on transactions and events that have
increased or decreased the accounts’ total economic resources during the period.

The basis of accounting determines the timing of the recognition of transactions and events. All
accounts of the Workers’ Compensation Program are reported on using the accrual basis of
accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and
expenses are recognized when incurred.

1.D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position
1.D.1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are reported on the accompanying Statement of Net Position and
Statement of Cash Flows. Cash includes cash in banks, cash on deposit with the Office of the State
Treasurer (OST), and cash on hand. Cash equivalents are pooled investments and include short-
term, highly-liquid investments that are both readily convertible to cash and mature within three
months of the date acquired.

Under RCW 43.08.015, the OST has the statutory responsibility to ensure the effective cash
management of the state’s public funds. RCW 43.84.080 authorizes the Treasurer to invest
available cash and includes a list of eligible investments. The OST invests Workers” Compensation
Program cash surpluses where funds can be disbursed at any time without prior notice or penalty.
As a result, the cash balances of accounts with surplus pooled balances are not reduced for these
investments.

1.D.2. DOE Trust Cash and Investments

Per RCW 51.04.130, the U.S. Department of Energy has contracted with the Workers’
Compensation Program to pay benefits to Hanford nuclear production complex workers injured
on the job. Funds provided in advance by the U.S. Department of Energy to cover the pension
liability determined by the Workers” Compensation Program are restricted assets and recorded as
“DOE trust cash and investments.” The remaining pension liability not covered by DOE trust cash
and investments is recorded as “DOE trust receivable.”

As of June 30, 2017, trust cash and investments of $653,905, representing the funds on deposit for

the reimbursement of pension payments to Hanford injured workers, are classified as current assets
on the Statement of Net Position. There were no noncurrent trust investments in 2017.
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1.D.3. Investments

Current and noncurrent investments are reported at fair value. Fair values are based on published
market prices, quotations from national security exchanges, and security pricing services.

1.D.4. Receivables and Payables

Current receivables arose in the ordinary course of business and consist of amounts due for
workers’ compensation premiums, investment interest receivable, and other miscellaneous
receivables. Receivables are recorded when they can be reasonably estimated and have been
earned (i.e., overpayment has occurred, service has been performed, or the time period has passed).
Receivables due for workers’ compensation premiums for the quarter ended June 30, 2017, are
estimated. All receivables are reported net of an allowance for accounts estimated to be
uncollectible. Current accounts receivable are generally expected to be collected within one year
following the end of the fiscal year.

The Workers’ Compensation Program uses the allowance method for establishing an allowance
for uncollectible receivables. Management regularly reviews receivables and adjusts the allowance
based on weighted average percentages calculated from a historical analysis of past collection
activity. The allowance percentages are determined based on age category and collection activity
for each receivable. Interest accrues on overdue accounts receivable at the rate of one percent per
month. When an account is deemed uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance; however,
such accounts are not forgiven until allowed by law. The Workers’ Compensation Program does
not require collateral for its accounts receivable except for self- insurance pension receivables.

The Workers’ Compensation Program establishes claims liabilities (unpaid loss and loss
adjustment expense liabilities) based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including future
claims adjustment expenses) that have been reported but not resolved and claims that have been
incurred but not reported. The length of time for which such costs must be estimated varies
depending on the type of benefit involved. Because actual claim costs depend on complex factors,
such as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liabilities, claim adjudication, and judgments, the
actual ultimate claim costs may differ from the estimates. In accordance with GASB Statement
No.10, the claims liabilities are reported net of recoveries.

Claims payable are recomputed quarterly using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques.
These techniques are used to produce current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claim
frequency, expected inflation, and other economic, legal, and social factors. Adjustments to claims
payable are charged or credited to claims expense in the periods in which they are made.

The benefit and claim administrative expense liabilities are discounted to reflect the time value of
money using an average discount rate of 2.37 percent. The amount of discount is based on an
actuarially derived projected payment pattern and selected annual interest rate. The Medical Aid
and Supplemental Pension Accounts are discounted at 1.5 percent. The Pension Reserve Account
is discounted at 6.2 percent. For the Accident Account, combinations of discount rates are
used. The future total permanent disability and fatal transfers made to the Pension Account assume
a discount rate of 6.2 percent through the first quarter of fiscal year 2018. This rate is reduced to
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6.0 percent for the next 12 months and then is gradually reduced each 12-month period until
settling at a long-term annual rate of 4.5 percent. The transfer payments and all other liabilities are
discounted at 1.5 percent.

The actuaries estimate accrued retrospective premium annual adjustments for unadjusted
enrollment periods by reviewing historical participation and return patterns. The historical
averages are used to arrive at an estimate of net retrospective return premiums for unadjusted
periods. Cumulative return premiums for periods from the first annual adjustment through the third
annual adjustment are system-generated, and the accruals are the difference between the
cumulative returns and the amount already returned. The third annual retrospective adjustment is
final. Retrospective return premiums due to employers are netted with additional premiums due
from employers and recorded as a liability in the Accident Account.

1.D.5. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Consumable inventories consisting of expendable materials and supplies held for consumption are
valued and reported in the Statement of Net Position at weighted average cost if the fiscal year-
end balance on hand at an inventory control point exceeds $50,000. The Workers’ Compensation
Program expenses consumable inventories when used.

Prepaid expenses are certain types of services that will benefit future accounting periods and are
accounted for using the consumption method. The portion of services used during a period is
recorded as an expense. The remaining balance is reported as an asset until consumed. As of June
30, 2017, prepaid expenses amounted to $1,605,138.
1.D.6. Capital Assets
Capital assets are tangible or intangible assets held and used in the Workers’ Compensation
Program’s operations which have a service life of more than one year and meet the state’s
capitalization policy. In accordance with OFM policy, it is the Workers’ Compensation Program’s
policy to capitalize:

e Allland

e Buildings, building improvements, improvements other than buildings, and leasehold
improvements with a cost of $100,000 or greater

e Infrastructure with a cost of $100,000 or greater

e Intangible assets, either purchased or internally developed, with a cost of $1,000,000 or
greater that are “identifiable” by meeting either of the following conditions:

o The asset is capable of being separated or divided and sold, transferred, licensed,
rented, or exchanged; or
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o The asset arises from contractual or other legal rights, regardless of whether those
rights are transferable or separable

e All capital assets acquired with a Certificate of Participation

e All other capital assets with a unit cost (including ancillary costs) of $5,000 or greater,
unless otherwise noted

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Capital asset costs include the purchase price plus those costs
necessary to place the asset in its intended location and condition for use. Normal maintenance
and repair costs that do not materially add to the value or extend the life of capital assets are not
capitalized.

The value of assets constructed for use in the Workers’ Compensation Program includes all direct
construction costs and indirect costs, such as agency project management costs, that are related to
the construction. Net interest cost incurred during the period of construction, if material, is
capitalized.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The cost and related accumulated depreciation of capital assets that have been disposed of
are removed from the accounting records.

Generally, estimated useful lives are as follows:

e Buildings and building components 5 to 50 years
e Furnishings, equipment, and collections 3 to 50 years
e Other improvements 3 to 50 years
e Infrastructure 20 to 50 years
e Intangible assets with definite useful lives 3to 50 years

1.D.7. Compensated Absences

Workers’ Compensation Program employees accrue vested annual leave at a variable rate based
on years of service. In general, accrued annual leave cannot exceed 240 hours at the employee’s
anniversary date.

Employees accrue sick leave at the rate of one day per month without limitation on the amount
that can be accumulated. Sick leave is not vested; i.e., the Workers’ Compensation Program does
not pay employees for unused sick leave upon termination except upon employee death or
retirement. At death or retirement, the Workers’ Compensation Program is liable for 25 percent of
the employee’s accumulated sick leave. In addition, the Workers’ Compensation Program has a
sick leave buyout option in which each January, employees who accumulate sick leave in excess
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of 480 hours may redeem sick leave earned but not taken during the previous year at the rate of
one day’s pay in exchange for each four days of sick leave.

The Workers’ Compensation Program recognizes the expense and accrues a liability for annual
leave and estimated sick leave buyout, including related payroll taxes and applicable benefits, as
the leave is earned. It is the Workers’ Compensation Program’s policy to liquidate unpaid
compensated absences outstanding at June 30 with future resources rather than advance funding it
with currently available expendable financial resources.

1.E. Other Information
1.E.1. Risk Management

The state of Washington operates a self-insurance liability program pursuant to RCW 4.92.130.
The state’s policy is generally not to purchase commercial insurance for the risk of losses to which
it is exposed. Instead, the state’s management believes it is more economical to manage its risks
internally and set aside assets for claims settlement in the Risk Management Fund, an internal
service fund. Coverage is provided up to $10 million for each claim with no deductible.
Commercial insurance is purchased for various liabilities and to limit the exposure to catastrophic
losses. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage
in any of the past ten fiscal years. Otherwise, the self-insurance liability program services all claims
against the state for injuries and property damage to third parties.

The Workers” Compensation Program participates in the state’s self-insurance liability program,
in proportion to its anticipated exposure to liability losses, to manage its various risks of loss
related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural
disasters.

1.E.2. Interfund/Interagency Activities

The Workers’ Compensation Program engages in reciprocal and non-reciprocal
interfund/interagency activities that may include an element of indirect cost. Reciprocal
interfund/interagency activity is the internal counterpart to exchange and exchange-like
transactions. Non-reciprocal activity is non-exchange in nature and includes both transfers and
reimbursements.

Note 2 - Accounting and Reporting Changes

Reporting Changes

Effective for fiscal year 2017 reporting, the Workers’ Compensation Program adopted the
following new standard issued by the GASB:

Statement No. 82 Pension Issues—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73.
GASB Statement No. 82 amends the definition of covered payroll for pensions reported in required
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supplementary information. Instead of presenting covered-employee payroll, which is the payroll
of employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan, the required supplementary
information will present covered payroll, defined as the payroll on which contributions to a pension
plan are based.

Prior Period Adjustments

During the course of operations, an error was identified in billing for pensions that resulted in total
assets, operating income, and net position being understated. A self-insured employer transitioned
to an arrangement that deviated from standard self-insurance billing procedures. Due to an error
in implementing the agreement, pension payments made by the Workers’ Compensation Program
were not billed for reimbursement. The parties have agreed on the unbilled portion and the
Workers’ Compensation Program will be reimbursed $20,583,596 for pensions paid from April
2001 through June 2016. Beginning in July 2016, the Workers” Compensation Program billed for
the pension payments made on behalf of this self-insured employer and reimbursements were
received.

Under Statement No. 62 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance, paragraph 88, states, “Correction of an error in the
financial statements of a prior period discovered subsequent to their issuance should be reported
as a prior-period adjustment.” Had this error been noted during 2016, total assets and net position
would have increased by $20,583,596 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. The billing process
was corrected prospectively during 2017 and a receivable for $20,583,596 was appropriately
recognized. The Workers’ Compensation Program recorded an increase to the beginning net
position as a result of correcting this error. The Net Position (Deficit) at July 1, 2016, has been
restated as follows:

Net Position (Deficit) at June 30, 2016, as previously reported $ (9,717,572,421)
Prior Period Adjustment - Correction Of An Error 20,583,596
Net Position (Deficit) at July 1, 2016, as restated $ (9,696,988,825)

Note 3 - Deposits and Investments

3.A. Deposits
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a depository financial institution’s

failure, the Workers’ Compensation Program would not be able to recover its deposits. See Note
1.D.1 for more information on cash and cash equivalents.
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The Workers’ Compensation Program minimizes custodial credit risk by restrictions set forth in
state law. Statutes require state agencies to deposit funds in financial institutions that are physically
located in Washington, unless otherwise expressly permitted by statute and authorized by the
Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC). The PDPC, established under chapter
39.58 RCW, makes and enforces regulations and administers a collateral pool program to ensure
that public funds are protected if a financial institution becomes insolvent. Securities pledged are
held by a trustee agent for the benefit of the collateral pool.

The OST manages the deposits for the Workers” Compensation Program. At June 30, 2017, $35.3
million of the Workers’ Compensation Program’s deposits with financial institutions were either
insured or collateralized, with the remaining $403,905 uninsured/uncollateralized. The Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) covers the Workers’ Compensation Program’s insured
deposits, and the PDPC provides collateral protection.
3.B. Investments
3.B.1. Summary of Investment Policies
Under RCW 43.33A.030, trusteeship of the Workers” Compensation Program’s investments is
vested in the voting members of the Washington State Investment Board (WSIB). The Legislature
established a standard of care for investment of these funds in RCW 43.33A.140. Additionally, the
WSIB and its staff must comply with other state laws, such as the Ethics in Public Service Act,
chapter 42.52 RCW, as it makes investment decisions and seeks to meet its investment objectives.
In accordance with RCW 43.33A.110, the Workers” Compensation Program portfolios are to be
managed to limit fluctuations in workers’ compensation premiums and, subject to this purpose,
achieve a maximum return at a prudent level of risk. Based on this requirement, the objectives are
to:

e Maintain the solvency of the accounts.

e Maintain premium rate stability.

e Ensure that sufficient assets are available to fund the expected liability payments.

e Subject to the objectives above, achieve a maximum return at a prudent level of risk.

Eligible Investments - Eligible investments are securities and deposits that are in accordance with
the WSIB’s investment policy and chapter 43.33A RCW. Eligible investments include:

e U.S. equities
¢ International equities

e U.S. Treasuries and government agencies
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e Credit bonds

e Mortgage-backed securities rated investment grade, as defined by Bloomberg Barclays
Family of Fixed Income Indices

e Asset-backed securities rated investment grade, as defined by Bloomberg Barclays
Family of Fixed Income Indices

e Commercial mortgage-backed securities rated investment grade, as defined by
Bloomberg Barclays Family of Fixed Income Indices

e Investment grade non-U.S. dollar bonds
e Real Estate
Investment Policies and Restrictions

To meet stated objectives, investments of the Workers” Compensation Program are subject to the
following constraints:

e All assets under the management of the WSIB are to be invested to maximize return at a
prudent level of risk, in accordance with RCW 43.33A.110 and RCW 43.33A.140.

e No corporate fixed income issue cost shall exceed three percent of the fund’s fair value at
the time of purchase, nor shall its fair value exceed six percent of the fund’s fair value at
any time.

e Asset allocations are to be reviewed every four years or sooner if there are significant
changes in funding levels or the liability durations. Asset allocations per the June 2017 L&I
asset investment policy are:

Asset Allocation Target and Ranges

Fund Fixed Income Equity Real Estate
Accident Fund 80% 6 15% +4 5% +2
Pension Reserve Fund 85% +5 10% %3 5% 2
Medical Aid Fund 75% 7 20% =5 5% +2
Supplemental Pension Fund 100% 0% 0%

e Assets are to be rebalanced across asset classes when the fair value of the assets falls
outside the policy ranges. The timing of any rebalancing will be based on market
opportunities, cash flows, and the consideration of transaction costs; therefore, they need
not occur immediately.

52



State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program

The WSIB has elected a gradual implementation plan to reach the strategic asset allocation. During
this implementation period, if real estate is above or below its target due to timing or illiquidity,
fixed income will be used to offset the balance.

Equity - Sector allocation for U.S. equities should be within a range of 47 to 57 percent. Allocation
for international equities should be within a range of 43 to 53 percent.

The benchmark and structure for global equities will be the broad Morgan Stanley Capital
International (MSCI) All Country World Investable Market Index net with USA gross. The global
equity portfolio will be passively managed in commingled index funds. The commingled fund
managers may use futures for hedging or establishing a long position.

Fixed Income - Sector allocation of fixed income investments are to be managed within prescribed
ranges. Deviations may occur in the short term as a result of interim market conditions. However,
if a range is exceeded, the portfolios must be rebalanced to the target allocations as soon as it is
practical. Target allocations for the fixed income sectors include:

U.S. Treasuries and government agencies 5 to 25 percent
Credit bonds 20 to 80 percent
Asset-backed securities 0 to 10 percent
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 0 to 10 percent
Mortgage-backed securities 0 to 25 percent

Total market value of below-investment-grade credit bonds (as defined by Bloomberg Barclays
Family of Fixed Income Indices) shall not exceed five percent of the total market value of the
funds. Although below-investment-grade mortgage-backed, asset-backed, and commercial
mortgage-backed securities may not be purchased, portfolio holdings that are downgraded to those
levels or are no longer rated may continue to be held.

Total market value of below-investment-grade mortgage-backed, asset-backed, and commercial
mortgage-backed securities should not exceed five percent of total market value of the funds.

Real Estate - The objectives and characteristics of the real estate portfolio are as follows:
e To generate a six percent annual investment return over a rolling 10-year period

¢ The return will be generated by current income, and the portfolio will be intentionally constructed
to focus on yield rather than total return.

¢ The portfolio will be diversified across geography and property type.
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e The benchmark for the portfolio is a total net return of six percent measured over a rolling 10-
year period.

e No more than 15 percent of the real estate portfolio will be invested in a single property after the
program’s build-out period.

3.B.2. Valuation of Investments

Fair Value - GASB Statement No. 72 Fair Value Measurement and Application (Statement 72)
specifies a hierarchy of valuation classifications based on whether the inputs to the valuation
techniques used in each valuation classification are observable or unobservable. These
classifications are summarized in three broad levels listed below:

e Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.

e Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, including quoted prices for similar assets
or liabilities in markets that are active; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or
liabilities in markets that are not active; and inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the assets or liabilities (such as exchange rates, financing terms, interest
rates, yield curves, volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss severities, credit risks, and default
rates).

e Level 3 — Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which significant inputs or
significant value drivers are unobservable.

Inputs that are used to measure fair value might fall in different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
in which case the Workers’ Compensation Program defaults to the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement of each investment, with Level 3 being the lowest level.
The determination of fair value of an investment within the hierarchy of classifications above is
not necessarily an indication of the risk or liquidity associated with the investments. In determining
the appropriate levels, the Workers” Compensation Program performed a detailed analysis of the
assets and liabilities that are subject to Statement 72. Valuation policies and procedures are
managed by the Investment Accounting and Administration unit of the WSIB, which regularly
monitors fair value measurements. Fair value measurements are prepared and reviewed monthly,
and any third party valuations are reviewed for reasonableness and compliance with relevant
accounting standards.

The Workers’ Compensation Program receives fair value prices for publicly traded debt securities
directly from its custodian bank. These prices are obtained from reputable pricing sources which
include, but are not limited to, Bloomberg and Interactive Data Corporation. The custodian bank
performs the following tolerance and review checks on the pricing data on a daily basis:

e Researches price changes from the previous day of two to five percent or greater, with
corroborating evidence required from the primary pricing vendor.
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e Prices unchanged for more than 10 days are sent to the appropriate vendor for review and
verification.

The Workers” Compensation Program invests in Collective Investment Trusts operated by a bank
or trust company and groups assets contributed into a commingled investment fund. These “mutual
fund” type investments are not available to the general public and are open-ended funds, which
issues or reduces shares for contributions and redemptions from the fund. The commingled fund
manager determines a periodic price per unit of the collective trust by obtaining fair values of the
underlying holdings using reputable pricing sources and computing an overall net asset value per
share.

The Workers’ Compensation Program reports investments at fair value and categorizes its fair
value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting
principles. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and

Changes in Net Position.
The table below presents fair value measurements as of June 30, 2017:

Schedule of Fair Value Measurement
June 30, 2017

(in thousands)
Fair Value Measurements Using

Investment Type Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Debt securities
Mortgage and other asset-backed securities $ 1,252,255 $ 1,252,255
Corporate bonds 9,524,313 9,524,313
U.S. and foreign government and agency securities 3,322,956 3,322,956

Total investments by fair value level $ 14,099,524 $ 14,099,524
Investments measured at net asset value (NAV)
Commingled equity investment trusts 2,106,218

Total investments measured at the NAV 2,106,218
Total investments measured at fair value $ 16,205,742
Other assets (liabilities) measured at fair value
Collateral held under securities lending agreements $ 94,142 $ 94,142
Obligations under securities lending agreements $ (94,142) $ (94,142)
Total other assets (liabilities) measured at fair value $ - $ -

*This total does not tie to Investments, current and noncurrent, on the Statement of Net Position. This schedule includes only WSIB
investments.

Investments classified as Level 2 - Investments classified as Level 2 in the above table are
comprised of publicly-traded debt securities. Publicly-traded debt securities are sourced from
reputable pricing vendors using models that are market-based measurements representing their
good faith opinion as to the exit value of a security in an orderly transaction under current market
conditions. Such models take into account quoted prices, nominal yield spreads, benchmark yield
curves, prepayment speeds, and other market-corroborated inputs.
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Investments measured at net asset value (NAV) - The Workers” Compensation Program invests
in seven separate collective investment trust funds (fund) that are operated by a bank or trust
company and groups assets contributed into a commingled investment fund. These “mutual fund”
type investments are not available to the general public and are open-ended funds, which issue or
reduce shares for contributions and redemptions from the fund. The commingled fund manager
determines a periodic price per unit of the collective trust by obtaining fair values of the underlying
holdings using reputable pricing sources and computing an overall net asset value per share. The
holdings within each fund are publicly traded equity securities.

Six of the seven funds are passively managed to collectively approximate the capitalization
weighted total rates of return of the MSCI All Country World Ex U.S. Investable Market Index.
Each fund has monthly openings and contributions, and withdrawals can be made on each opening
date. The fund manager, at its discretion, reserves the right to delay the processing of deposits and
withdrawals from each fund in order to ensure that securities transactions will be carried out in an
orderly manner. The fund may suspend valuation and withdrawal rights when, at the fund
manager’s sole discretion, prevailing market conditions or other circumstances, events, or
occurrences make the disposition or valuation of investments impracticable or inadvisable, or
when the fund manager otherwise considers such action to be in the best interest of the participants
or believes that such action would assist in eliminating or mitigating an adverse effect on the fund
or participants.

The remaining fund is passively managed to approximate the capitalization weighted total rates of
return of the MSCI U.S. Investable Market Index. The fund has daily openings and contributions,
and withdrawals can be made on any business day. The fund manager, at its discretion, may require
withdrawal proceeds to be made partially or wholly in kind. Under certain circumstances, the fund
manager may choose to suspend valuation and/or the right to make contributions and withdrawals
from the fund. Such circumstances include actual or anticipated closure, restriction, or suspension
of trading activity in any markets or exchanges where the fund investments are traded; where the
purchase, sale, or pricing of the fund’s investments would not be reasonably practicable or
advisable; or where suspending contributions or withdrawals would be in the best interest of the
fund or participants.

3.B.3. Securities Lending

The Workers” Compensation Program participates in securities lending programs with the WSIB
and the OST to increase investment income. At June 30, 2017, the Workers’ Compensation
Program had $94,141,614 of cash collateral received in the Medical Aid, Pension Reserve and
Supplemental Pension Accounts invested through the WSIB. There was $176,445 of cash
collateral received in the Medical Aid and the Supplemental Pension Accounts invested through
the OST.

Securities Lending — WSIB
State law and WSIB policy permit the Workers’ Compensation Program to participate in securities

lending programs to augment investment income. The WSIB has entered into an agreement with
State Street Corporation to act as agent for the Workers’ Compensation Program in securities
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lending transactions. As State Street Corporation is the custodian bank for the Workers’
Compensation Program, it is counterparty to securities lending transactions.

The fair value of the securities on loan at June 30, 2017, was approximately $506.1 million. The
Workers’ Compensation Program reports securities on loan on the Statement of Net Position in
their respective categories. At June 30, 2017, cash collateral received totaling $94.1 million is
reported as a securities lending obligation, and the fair value of the reinvested cash collateral
totaling $94.1 million is reported as security lending collateral in the Statement of Net Position.
Securities received as collateral for which the Workers’ Compensation Program does not have the
ability to pledge or sell unless the borrower defaults are not reported as assets or liabilities in the
Statement of Net Position. Total securities received as collateral at June 30, 2017, was $430.3
million.

During fiscal year 2017, fixed income securities were loaned and collateralized by the Workers’
Compensation Program’s agent with cash and U.S. government or U.S. agency securities,
including U.S. agency mortgage-backed securities (exclusive of letters of credit). When the loaned
securities had collateral denominated in the same currency, the collateral requirement was 102
percent of the fair value, including accrued interest, of the securities loaned. All other securities
were required to be collateralized at 105 percent of the fair value, including accrued interest, of
the loaned securities.

As of June 30, 2017, the Workers’ Compensation Program held the following securities from
reinvestment of cash collateral and securities received as collateral:

Collateral Held Under Securities Lending
June 30, 2017
(in thousands)

Non-Cash

Cash Collateral Collateral Total
Mortgage-backed $ - % 429,377 % 429,377
Repurchase agreements 41,229 - 41,229
Yankee CDs 17,142 - 17,142
Commercial Paper 21,021 - 21,021
Cash equivalents and other 14,750 922 15,672
Total Collateral Held $ 94,142 $ 430,299 $ 524,441

Securities lending transactions can be terminated on demand either by the Workers’ Compensation
Program or the borrower. As of June 30, 2017, the collateral held had an average duration of 19.1
days and an average weighted final maturity of 62.6 days. Because the securities lending
agreements were terminable at will, their duration did not generally match the duration of the
investments made with the cash collateral. Non-cash collateral cannot be pledged or sold absent
borrower default. No more than 20 percent of the total on-loan value can be held by a specific
borrower. Collateral investment guidelines specifically prohibit European-domiciled holdings.
There are no restrictions on the amount of securities that can be lent.
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Securities were lent with the agreement that they would be returned in the future for exchange of
the collateral. State Street Corporation indemnified the Workers’ Compensation Program by
agreeing to purchase replacement securities or return the cash collateral in the event a borrower
failed to return the loaned securities or pay distributions thereon. State Street Corporation’s
responsibilities included performing appropriate borrower and collateral investment credit
analyses, demanding adequate types and levels of collateral, and complying with applicable federal
regulations concerning securities lending.

During fiscal year 2017, there were no significant violations of legal or contractual provisions and
no failures by any borrowers to return loaned securities or to pay distributions thereon. Further,
the Workers’ Compensation Program incurred no losses during fiscal year 2017 resulting from a
default by either the borrowers or the securities lending agents.

Securities Lending — OST

State statutes permit the OST to lend its securities to broker-dealers and other entities with a
simultaneous agreement to return the collateral for the same securities in the future. The OST has
contracted with Citibank, N.A. as a lending agent and receives a share of income earned from this
activity. The lending agent lends U.S. government and U.S. agency securities and receives
collateral, which can be in the form of cash or other securities. The collateral, which must be valued
at 102 percent of the fair value of the loaned securities, is priced daily and, if necessary, action is
taken to maintain the collateralization level at 102 percent.

The cash is invested by the lending agent in repurchase agreements, deposit accounts, or money
market instruments, in accordance with investment guidelines approved by the OST. The securities
held as collateral and the securities underlying the cash collateral are held by the custodian. The
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) portfolio is invested in a manner that meets the
requirements set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board for the maturity, quality,
diversification and liquidity for the external investment pools that wish to measure all of its
investments at amortized costs. The funds are limited to high quality obligations with regulated
maximum average maturities, the effect of which is to minimize both market and credit risk. The
LGIP transacts with its participants at a stable net asset value per share of one dollar, which results
in the amortized cost reported equaling the number of shares in the LGIP. During fiscal year 2017,
cash received as collateral was invested in the LGIP money market fund and/or demand deposit
accounts, which allow withdrawals each business day to cover maturing loans. At June 30, 2017,
the Workers’ Compensation Program’s cash collateral totaled $176,445.

Contracts require the lending agent to indemnify the OST if the borrowers fail to return securities
and if the collateral is inadequate to replace the securities lent, or if the borrower fails to pay the
OST for income distributed by the securities’ issuers while the securities are on loan. The OST
cannot pledge or sell collateral securities received unless the borrower defaults. At June 30, 2017,
the fair value of securities on loan for the Workers’ Compensation Program totaled $172,116.

The OST investment policy requires that any securities on loan be made available by the lending
agent for next day liquidity at the option of the OST. During fiscal year 2017, the OST had no
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credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts owed to the borrowers exceeded the
amounts the borrowers owed to the OST.

There were no violations of legal or contractual provisions or any losses resulting from a default
of a borrower or lending agent during the fiscal year.

3.B.4. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates over time will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. While the Workers” Compensation Program does not have a formal policy
relating to interest rate risk, the risk is managed within the Workers’ Compensation Program
portfolio using effective duration, which is the measure of a debt investment’s exposure to fair
value changes arising from changes in interest rates. Increases in prevailing interest rates generally
translate into decreases in fair values of fixed income investments. As of June 30, 2017, the
Workers” Compensation Program portfolio durations were within the prescribed duration targets.

The schedules below provide information about the interest rate risks associated with the Workers’
Compensation Program investments as of June 30, 2017. The schedules display various asset
classes held by years until maturity and effective duration, and credit ratings. All debt securities
are reported using average life within the portfolio. The average life is a calculated estimate of the
average time (in years) until maturity for these securities, taking into account possible prepayments
of principal.

Schedule of Maturities and Effective Duration
June 30, 2017
(dollars in thousands)

Maturity Effective

Less than More than  Duration
Investment Type Fair Value 1year 1-5 years 6-10 years 10 years (years)
Mortgage and other asset-backed securities ~ $ 1,252,255 % 4,449 $ 790,690 $ 404,776 $ 52,340 4.80
Corporate bonds 9,524,313 286,490 4,185,071 2,387,038 2,665,714 6.90
U.S. government and agency securities 2,464,572 159,588 1,074,527 821,981 408,476 6.80
Foreign government and agencies 858,384 - 567,899 259,764 30,721  4.60
Total investments categorized 14,099,524 $ 450,527 $ 6,618,187 $ 3,873,559 $ 3,157,251

Investments Not Required to be Categorized

Commingled investment trusts 2,106,218
Cash and cash equivalents 200,515
Total investments not categorized 2,306,733
Total* $ 16,406,257

*This total does not tie to Investments, current and noncurrent, on the Statement of Net Position. This schedule includes only WSIB
investments.
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Investments with multiple credit ratings at June 30, 2017, are presented using the Moody’s rating
scale as follows:

Multiple Credit Rating Disclosure

June 30, 2017
(N thousands)

Investment Type

Moody's Mortgage and Foreign
Equivalent Credit Other Asset- Corporate Government and Total
Rating Backed Securities Bonds Agency Securities Fair VValue
Aaa $ 1,252,255 $ 545,263 $ 241,826 $ 2,039,344
Aal - 114,369 - % 114,369
Aa2 - 114,626 143,472 $ 258,098
Aa3 - 752,893 303,495 $ 1,056,388
Al - 1,786,795 88,275 $ 1,875,070
A2 - 1,097,503 - % 1,097,503
A3 - 1,696,543 - % 1,696,543
Baal - 1,121,269 27,596 $ 1,148,865
Baa2 - 1,192,272 - % 1,192,272
Baa3 765,282 53,720 $ 819,002
Bal or lower - 337,498 - % 337,498
Total Fair VValue $ 1,252,255 $ 9,524,313 $ 858,384 $ 11,634,952

3.B.5. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The Workers’ Compensation Program investment policies limit the fixed income
securities to investment grade or higher at the time of purchase. Investment grade securities are
those fixed income securities with a Moody’s rating of Aaa to Baa or a Standard and Poor’s rating
of AAA to BBB. The rated debt investments of the Workers’ Compensation Program as of June
30, 2017, were rated by Moody’s and/or an equivalent national rating organization.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the
magnitude of an investment in a single issuer. The Workers’ Compensation Program policy states
that no corporate fixed income issue cost shall exceed 3 percent of the fund’s fair value at the time
of purchase, nor shall its fair value exceed 6 percent of the fund’s fair value at any time. There was
no concentration of credit risk as of June 30, 2017.

Custodial Credit Risk (Investments) - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event that a
depository institution or counterparty fails, the Workers’ Compensation Program would not be
able to recover the value of its deposits, investments, or collateral securities. The Workers’
Compensation Program does not have a policy relating to custodial credit risk. The WSIB mitigates
custodial credit risk by having its investment securities (excluding cash, cash equivalents, and
repurchase agreements held as securities lending collateral) registered and held in the name of the
WSIB for the benefit of the Workers’ Compensation Program.
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3.B.6. Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment or a deposit. The Workers’ Compensation Program does not have a formal policy
to limit foreign currency risk. The only security held by the Workers’ Compensation Program with
foreign currency exposure at June 30, 2017, consisted of $785.2 million (includes U.S. dollar-
denominated securities) invested in an international commingled equity index fund.

The following schedule presents the exposure of the Workers” Compensation Program to foreign
currency risk stated in U.S. dollars:

Workers' Compensation Program
Foreign Currency Exposure by Country
June 30, 2017
(in thousands)

Foreign Currency Denomination Equity Securities

Australia-Dollar $ 39,031
Brazil-Real 12,006
Canada-Dollar 53,110
Denmark-Krone 9,877
E.M.U.-Euro 174,944
Hong Kong-Dollar 56,921
India-Rupee 17,977
Japan-Yen 138,291
Mexico-Peso 6,864
New Taiwan-Dollar 25,091
Singapore-Dollar 7,441
South Africa-Rand 12,118
South Korea-Won 29,773
Sweden-Krona 18,539
Switzerland-Franc 44,890
United Kingdom-Pound 102,328
Miscellaneous Foreign Currencies 35,965
Total $ 785,166

3.B.7. Derivatives

To manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest and currency rates while increasing portfolio
returns, the Workers’ Compensation Program is authorized to utilize various derivative financial
instruments, including collateralized mortgage obligations, financial futures, forward contracts,
interest rate and equity swaps, and options.
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Derivative transactions involve, to varying degrees, market and credit risk. The Workers’
Compensation Program mitigates market risks arising from derivative transactions by requiring
collateral in cash and investments to be maintained equal to the securities positions outstanding,
and thereby prohibiting the use of leverage or speculation. Credit risks arising from derivative
transactions are mitigated by selecting and monitoring creditworthy counterparties and collateral
issuers.

Domestic and foreign passive equity index fund managers may also utilize various derivative
securities to manage exposure to risk and increase portfolio returns. Information on the extent of
use and holdings of derivative securities by passive equity index fund managers is unavailable. At
June 30, 2017, the only derivative securities held directly by the Workers” Compensation Program
were collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) of $746.6 million.

3.B.8. Reverse Repurchase Agreements

State law permits the Workers’ Compensation Program to enter into reverse repurchase
agreements, i.e., a sale of securities with a simultaneous agreement to repurchase them in the future
at the same price plus a contract rate of interest. The fair value of the securities underlying reverse
repurchase agreements normally exceeds the cash received, providing the dealers a margin against
a decline in fair value of the securities. If the dealers default on their obligations to resell these
securities to the state or provide securities or cash of equal value, the Workers’ Compensation
Program would suffer an economic loss equal to the difference between the fair value plus accrued
interest of the underlying securities and the agreement obligation, including accrued interest. There
were no reverse repurchase agreements entered into during fiscal year 2017, and there were no
liabilities outstanding as of June 30, 2017.
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Note 4 - Receivables

Receivables at June 30, 2017, consisted of the following:

Receivables
June 30, 2017
Current Receivables
Premiums receivable

Actual premiums receivable $ 175,500,991
Estimated premiums receivable * 679,654,000
Estimated self-insurance premiums receivable 65,879,014
Total Premiums Receivable 921,034,005
Other receivables
Receivable from overpayments 2,060,468
Investment interest receivable 106,660,672
Safety fines and penalties receivable 16,998,999
Miscellaneous receivables 14,796,202
Total Current Receivables, Gross 1,061,550,346
Less: Allowance for uncollectible receivables 168,465,748
Total Current Receivables, Net of Allowance $ 893,084,598

!Estimated premiums receivable represents premiums due for the quarter ended June 30, 2017. Premium amounts
were estimated by L&I actuaries, to be collected for the Accident, Medical Aid, and Supplemental Pension Accounts.

2Estimated self-insurance premiums receivable represents estimated assessment receivables accrued for the quarter
ended June 30, 2017, based on prior employer quarterly reports. This amount also includes pension receivables,
experting, and accounts receivable balances.
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Note 5 - Interfund/Interagency Balances

Receivables from other state accounts and agencies as of June 30, 2017, consisted of the following:

Receivables From Other State Accounts and Agencies
June 30, 2017

General Fund $ 2,519
L&I accounts™* 20,559
Other state agencies 37,327
Total Receivables From Other

State Accounts and Agencies $ 60,405

*Receivables and payables between the Workers' Compensation
Programaccounts are not included in the above totals.

All balances are expected to be received within one year from the date of the basic financial
statements. These balances resulted from goods and services provided prior to June 30, 2017.

Payables to other state accounts and agencies as of June 30, 2017, consisted of the following:

Payables To Other State Accounts and Agencies
June 30, 2017

General Fund $ 40,189
L&I accounts® 420,363
Other state agencies 5,608,736
Total Payables To Other State

Accounts and Agencies $ 6,069,287

*Receivables and payables between the Workers' Compensation
Programaccounts are not included in the above totals.

All balances are expected to be paid within one year from the date of the basic financial statements.
These balances resulted from goods and services received prior to June 30, 2017, and paid after
the fiscal year ended.
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Note 6 - Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows:

Capital Assets Activity
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
July 1, 2016 Increases Decreases  June 30, 2017

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:

Land and collections $ 3,239,748 $ - % - $ 3,239,748
Construction in progress 9,553,812 6,660,622 (7,146,623) 9,067,811
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 12,793,560 6,660,622 (7,146,623) 12,307,559
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings and building components 65,133,602 - - 65,133,602
Accumulated depreciation (31,701,966) (1,353,502) - (33,055,468)
Net Buildings and Building Components 33,431,636 (1,353,502) - 32,078,134
Furnishings, equipment, and collections 60,680,314 896,916 (623,838) 60,953,392
Accumulated depreciation (58,929,201) (811,362) 614,409  (59,126,154)
Net Furnishings, Equipment, and Collections 1,751,113 85,554 (9,429) 1,827,238
Other improvements 1,289,262 - - 1,289,262
Accumulated depreciation (747,991) (20,408) - (768,399)
Net Other Improvements 541,271 (20,408) - 520,863
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 35,724,020 (1,288,356) (9,429) 34,426,235
Intangible assets - definite useful lives 42,146,437 7,146,623 (4,338,842) 44,954,218
Accumulated amortization (23,212,308) (7,665,253) 4,338,842  (26,538,719)
Total Capital Assets Being Amortized, Net 18,934,129 (518,630) - 18,415,499

Total Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation and Amortization ~ $ 67,451,709 $ 4,853,636 $ (7,156,052) $ 65,149,293

For fiscal year 2017, the total depreciation expense was $9,850,524.

Note 7 - Noncurrent Liabilities

7.A. Debt Refunding

When advantageous and permitted by statute and bond covenants, the State Finance Committee
authorizes the refunding of outstanding bonds. When the state refunds outstanding bonds, the net
proceeds of each refund issued are used to purchase U.S. government securities. These securities
are placed in irrevocable trusts with escrow agents to provide for all future debt service payments
on the refunded bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered defeased, and the liability
has been removed from the Statement of Net Position. There were no debt refundings in fiscal year
2017.
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7.B. Claims Payable

The following schedule presents the changes in claims liabilities (unpaid claims and claim
adjustment expense liabilities) for the past two fiscal years for the Workers’ Compensation
Program:

Changes in Claims Liabilities
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Claims Payable June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at beginning of fiscal year $ 25852,326,000 $ 25,066,149,000
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses
Provision for insured events of the current fiscal year 2,062,195,000 2,048,491,000
Increase in provision for insured events of prior fiscal years 968,518,000 975,846,000
Total Incurred Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses 3,030,713,000 3,024,337,000
Payments
Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to
Events of the current fiscal year 309,490,000 303,784,000
Insured events of prior fiscal years 1,933,011,000 1,934,376,000
Total payments 2,242,501,000 2,238,160,000
Total Unpaid Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses at Fiscal Year End $ 26,640,538,000 $ 25,852,326,000

Current portion
Noncurrent portion

2,035,874,000 $ 2,011,574,000
24,604,664,000 $  23,840,752,000

© O

At June 30, 2017, $38,238 million of unpaid loss and loss adjustment expense liabilities are
presented at their net present and settlement value of $26,641 million. These claims are discounted
on an actuarially derived projected payment pattern and selected annual interest rate. (See Note
1.D.4)

The claims and claim adjustment liabilities of $26,641 million as of June 30, 2017, include $13,306
million for supplemental pension COLAs that are funded on a current payment basis per RCW
51.32.073. Management believes the funding is in compliance with the statute. The remaining
claim liabilities of $13,335 million are fully funded by a diverse portfolio of fixed income
instruments, equity index funds, and cash, managed by the WSIB.
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7.C. Changes in Current and Noncurrent Liabilities

Current and noncurrent liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows:

Current and Noncurrent Liability Activity
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Beginning Balance Ending Balance Due Within Noncurrent Balance
Current and Noncurrent Liabilities June 30, 2017 Additions Reductions June 30, 2017 One Year’ June 30, 2017
Claims payable, current & noncurrent ~ $ 25,852,326,000 $ 3,030,713,000 $ (2,242,501,000) $ 26,640,538,000 $  2,035874,000 $ 24,604,664,000

Other current and noncurrent liabilities

Compensated absences 14,175,933 13,736,984 (13,598,686) 14,314,231 6,969,027 7,345,204
DOE trust liabilities 5,662,935 - (69,362) 5,593,573 645,000 4,948,573
Other postemployment benefits 53,078,000 12,927,000 (2,549,000) 63,456,000 - 63,456,000
Net pension liability 129,683,674 25,755,528 - 155,439,202 - 155,439,202
Total Other Current and
Noncurrent Liabilities 202,600,542 52,419,512 (16,217,048) 238,803,006 7,614,027 231,188,979
Total Current and
Noncurrent Liabilities $ 26054926542 $ 3083132512 $  (2,258,718,048) $  26,879,341,006 $  2,043488,027 $ 24,835,852,979

1Compensated absences due within one year are included in accrued liabilities on the Statement of Net Position.
There are other current liabilities that are not included in the table above.

7.D. Operating Leases

The Workers” Compensation Program leases land, office facilities, office and computer
equipment, and other assets under a variety of operating lease agreements. Although lease terms
vary, most leases are subject to appropriation from the State Legislature to continue the obligation.
Since the possibility of not receiving funding from the Legislature is remote, leases are considered
non-cancelable for financial reporting purposes. Certain operating leases are renewable for
specified periods. Management expects that the leases will be renewed or replaced by other leases.

The following schedule presents future minimum payments for operating leases as of June 30,
2017:

Future Minimum Payments for Operating Leases
June 30, 2017
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2018 $ 6,848,456
2019 5,469,741
2020 4,419,068
2021 3,191,387
2022 2,253,289

Total Future Minimum Lease Payments $ 22,181,941

The total operating lease rental expense for fiscal year 2017 was $10,965,191.
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Note 8 - Deficit

At June 30, 2017, the Workers” Compensation Program had a deficit of $9,647 million. This is a
result of a $13,063 million deficit in the Supplemental Pension Account at June 30, 2017, offset
by a combined $3,416 million net position in the total Basic Plan, Second Injury Account, Self-
Insured Employer Overpayment Reimbursement Account, and the Industrial Insurance Rainy Day
Fund. The Workers’ Compensation Program Basic Plan is funded based on rates that will keep the
plan solvent in accordance with recognized actuarial principles. Supplemental COLA adjustments
granted for time-loss and disability payments, however, are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.
According to RCW 51.32.073, the Supplemental Pension Account is allowed to collect only
enough revenue to provide for current payments. At June 30, 2017, noncurrent claims payable in
the Supplemental Pension Account totaled $12,760 million.

The following table summarizes the change in deficit balance for the Supplemental Pension
Account during fiscal year 2017:

Supplemental Pension Account
Net Position (Deficit)

Balance, July 1, 2016 $ (12,042,276,259)
Fiscal year 2017 activity (1,020,357,093)
Balance, June 30, 2017 $ (13,062,633,352)
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Note 9 - Retirement Plans and Net Pension Liability

Workers’ Compensation Program employees participate in the Washington State Public
Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) and Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS) administered by
the Department of Retirement Systems (DRS).

The table below shows the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred
inflows of resources reported on June 30, 2017, for the Workers’ Compensation Program’s
proportionate share of the liabilities for the PERS and TRS employee retirement plans. Additional
detail is provided later in this note.

Workers’ Compensation Program Proportionate Share
June 30, 2017

Net Pension Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Liability of Resources of Resources
PERS 1 $ 72,577,582 $ 10,039,297 $ -
PERS 2/3 82,761,762 26,505,740 (2,524,721)
TRS 1 70,402 9,903 -
TRS 2/3 29,456 4,737 (1,307)
Total $ 155,439,202 $ 36,559,677 $  (2,526,028)

Note: The Workers’ Compensation Program implemented GASB Statements 68 and 71 in fiscal year 2015.

DRS prepares a stand-alone financial report of the retirement plans that is compliant with the
requirements of GASB Statement 67. Copies of the report may be obtained by contacting the
Washington State Department of Retirement Systems, P.O. Box 48380, Olympia, WA 98504-8380
or online at http://www.drs.wa.gov/administration/annual-report.

9.A. Public Employees’ Retirement System
Plan Descriptions

The Legislature established the PERS in 1947. PERS retirement benefit provisions are established
in chapters 41.34 and 41.40 RCW and may be amended only by the Legislature. Membership in
the system includes: elected officials; state employees; employees of the Supreme, Appeals, and
Superior Courts (other than judges currently in a judicial retirement system); employees of
legislative committees; community college, technical college, 4-year college, and university
employees not covered in national higher education retirement programs; judges of district and
municipal courts; and employees of local governments.

PERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of three separate plans for
membership purposes: Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans, and Plan 3 is a combination defined
benefit/defined contribution plan. The defined benefit portions of Plan 2 and Plan 3 are accounted
for in the same pension trust fund. All assets of this Plan 2/3 defined benefit plan may legally be
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used to pay the defined benefits of any of the Plan 2 or Plan 3 members or beneficiaries, as defined
by the terms of the plan. Therefore, Plan 2/3 is considered to be a single defined benefit plan for
reporting purposes. Plan 3 accounts for the defined contribution portion of benefits for Plan 3
members.

PERS members who joined the system by September 30, 1977, are Plan 1 members. Plan 1 is
closed to new entrants. Those who joined on or after October 1, 1977, and by February 28, 2002,
are Plan 2 members, unless they exercised an option to transfer their membership to Plan 3.

PERS participants joining the system on or after March 1, 2002, have the irrevocable option of
choosing membership in either Plan 2 or Plan 3. The option must be exercised within 90 days of
employment. Employees who fail to make a selection within 90 days default to Plan 3.

Benefits Provided

PERS plans provide retirement, disability, and death benefits to eligible members. The monthly
retirement benefit is 2 percent of the average final compensation (AFC) per year of service for
Plan 1 and Plan 2, and 1 percent of the AFC per year of service for the defined benefit portion of
Plan 3.

PERS Plan 1 and Plan 2 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service.
Effective June 7, 2006, PERS Plan 3 members are vested in the defined benefit portion of their
plan after 10 years of service; or after five years of service, if 12 months of that service are earned
after age 44; or after five service credit years earned in PERS Plan 2 by June 1, 2003. Plan 3
members are immediately vested in the defined contribution portion of their plan.

Contributions

PERS defined benefit retirement benefits are financed from a combination of investment earnings
and employer and employee contributions.

Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 1 employer contributions rates,
Plan 2 employer and employee contribution rates, and Plan 3 employer contribution rates.
Contribution requirements are established and amended by state statute.

All employers are required to contribute at the level established by the Legislature. The methods
used to determine the contribution requirements are established under state statute in accordance
with chapters 41.40 and 41.45 RCW.

The employer contribution rate for the Workers” Compensation Program at the close of fiscal year
2017 for each of Plans 1, 2, and 3 was 11.18 percent.

The member contribution rate for Plan 1 is established by statute at six percent for employees of
state agencies. Contributions for Plan 2 members are determined by the aggregate method and may
vary over time. The contribution rate for Plan 2 state agency employees at June 30, 2017, was 6.12
percent of the employee’s annual covered salary. Under Plan 3, employer contributions finance

70



State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program

the defined benefit portion of the plan, and member contributions finance the defined contribution
portion. The Director of the DRS sets Plan 3 employee contribution rate options. Members can
choose from six rate options ranging from 5 to 15 percent. Two of the options are graduated rates
dependent on the employee’s age.

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015, with the

results rolled forward to June 30, 2016, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all
periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.00%
Salary increases 3.75%
Discount rate 7.50%
Investment rate of return 7.50%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Table and Combined Disabled
Table published by the Society of Actuaries. The Office of the State Actuary applied offsets to the
base table and recognized future improvements in mortality by projecting the mortality rates using
100 percent Scale BB. Mortality rates are applied on a generational basis, meaning members are
assumed to receive additional mortality improvements in each future year, throughout their
lifetime.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015, valuation were based on the results of the
2007-2012 Experience Study Report. Additional assumptions for subsequent events and law
changes are current as of the 2015 actuarial valuation report.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which a best estimate of expected future rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense but including inflation) are developed for each major asset
class by the WSIB. Those expected returns make up one component of WSIB’s Capital Market
Assumptions (CMAs). The CMAs contain the following three pieces of information for each class
of assets in which the WSIB currently invests:

e Expected annual return
e Standard deviation of the annual return
e Correlations between the annual returns of each asset class with every other asset class

WSIB uses the CMAs and their target asset allocation to simulate future investment returns over
various time horizons.

The Office of the State Actuary (OSA) selected a 7.5 percent long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments. In selecting this assumption, OSA reviewed the historical experience
data, considered the historical conditions that produced past annual investment returns, and
considered CMAs and simulated expected investment returns provided by WSIB. Refer to the
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2015 Report on Financial Condition and Economic Experience Study on the OSA website for
additional background on how this assumption was selected.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension
plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2016, are summarized in the following table:

Rates of Return
Target Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Fixed Income 20% 1.70%
Tangible Assets 5% 4.40%
Real Estate 15% 5.80%
Global Equity 37% 6.60%
Private Equity 23% 9.60%
Total 100%

The inflation component used to create the above table is 2.20 percent and represents WSIB’s most
recent long-term estimate of broad economic inflation.

The discount rate of 7.50 percent was also used for the prior measurement date. To determine the
discount rate, an asset sufficiency test was completed to test whether the pension plan’s fiduciary
net position was sufficient to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Consistent with current law, the completed asset sufficiency test included an assumed 7.70 percent
long-term discount rate to determine funding liabilities for calculating future contribution rate
requirements. Consistent with the long-term expected rate of return, a 7.50 percent future
investment rate of return on invested assets was assumed for the test. Contributions from plan
members and employers are assumed to continue to be made at contractually-required rates. Based
on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return of 7.50 percent on pension plan investments was applied to determine the
total pension liability.

The following presents the net pension liability/(asset) of the employers, calculated using the
discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the employers’ net pension liability/(asset) would be
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.50 percent) or one
percentage point higher (8.50 percent) than the current rate.

Employers’ Proportionate Share of
Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

PERS 1 PERS 2/3
1% Decrease $ 87,521,251 $ 152,379,273
Current Discount Rate $ 72,577,582 $ 82,761,762
1% Increase $ 59,717,615 $ (43,082,277)
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Net Pension Liability

At June 30, 2017, the Workers’ Compensation Program reported a liability of $72,577,582 for its
proportionate share of the collective net pension liability for PERS 1 and $82,761,762 for PERS
2/3. The Workers’ Compensation Program’s proportion for PERS 1 was 3.22 percent, a decrease
of 0.04 percent since the prior reporting period, and 3.31 percent for PERS 2/3, a decrease of 0.03
percent. The proportions are based on the Workers’ Compensation Program’s contributions to the
pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating employers.

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources

For the year ended June 30, 2017, an increase to pension expense of $4,053,710 was recognized
for PERS 1, and an increase to pension expense of $11,830,555 was recognized for PERS 2/3.

At June 30, 2017, PERS 1 and PERS 2/3 reported deferred outflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of Resources
June 30, 2017

PERS 1 PERS 2/3 Total

Difference between expected and actual

experience $ - $ 4,407,006 $ 4,407,006
Changes of assumptions - 855,410 855,410
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 1,827,389 10,127,651 11,955,040
Change in proportionate share of contributions - 794,667 794,667
Contributions subsequent to measurement date 8,211,908 10,321,007 18,532,915
Total $ 10,039,297 $ 26,505,741 $ 36,545,038
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At June 30, 2017, PERS 1 and PERS 2/3 reported deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

from the following sources:

Deferred Inflows of Resources
June 30, 2017

Difference between expected and actual
experience

Changes of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments

Change in proportionate share of contributions

Total

PERS 1 PERS 2/3 Total
$ - $ 2732102 $ 2,732,102
- (207,380) (207,380)
$ - $2524722  $2,524,722

Pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement date in the amount of $8,211,908 and
$10,321,007 for PERS 1 and PERS 2/3, respectively, were reported as deferred outflows of
resources at June 30, 2017, and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the

fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Net Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources

Fiscal Year ended June 30, PERS 1 PERS 2/3

2018 $ (449,942) $ 597,331
2019 $ (449,942) $ 403,995
2020 $ 1,678,260 $ 7,845,374
2021 $ 1,049,012 $ 4,813,312
2022 $ - $ -
Thereafter $ ) $ )

9.B. Teachers’ Retirement System

Plan Description

The Legislature established the TRS in 1938. TRS retirement benefit provisions are established in
chapters 41.32 and 41.34 RCW and may be amended only by the Legislature. Eligibility for
membership requires service as a certificated public school employee working in an instructional,
administrative, or supervisory capacity. TRS is comprised principally of non-state agency
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employees. The University of Washington employees paid from Workers” Compensation Program
funds are members of TRS Plan 3. The University of Washington promotes health and minimizes
occupational disease or injury through teaching, research, and service for the Workers’
Compensation Program.

TRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of three separate plans for
membership purposes: Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans, and Plan 3 is a combination defined
benefit/defined contribution plan. The defined benefit portions of Plan 2 and Plan 3 are accounted
for in the same pension trust fund. All assets of this Plan 2/3 defined benefit plan may legally be
used to pay the defined benefits of any of the Plan 2 or Plan 3 members or beneficiaries, as defined
by the terms of the plan. Therefore, Plan 2/3 is considered to be a single defined benefit plan for
reporting purposes. Plan 3 accounts for the defined contribution portion of benefits for Plan 3
members.

TRS members who joined the system by September 30, 1977, are Plan 1 members. Plan 1 is closed
to new entrants. Those who joined on or after October 1, 1977, and by June 30, 1996, are Plan 2
members, unless they exercised an option to transfer their membership to Plan 3. TRS members
joining the system on or after July 1, 1996, are members of TRS Plan 3.

Legislation passed in 2007 gives TRS members hired on or after July 1, 2007, 90 days to make an
irrevocable choice to become a member of TRS Plan 2 or Plan 3. At the end of 90 days, any
member who has not made a choice becomes a member of Plan 3.

Benefits Provided

TRS plans provide retirement, disability, and death benefits to eligible members. The monthly
retirement benefit is 2 percent of the average final compensation (AFC) per year of service for
Plan 1 and Plan 2, and 1 percent of the AFC per year of service for the defined benefit portion of
Plan 3.

TRS Plan 1 and Plan 2 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service.
TRS Plan 3 members are vested in the defined benefit portion of their plan after 10 years of service;
or after five years of service, if 12 months of that service are earned after age 44; or after five
service credit years earned in PERS Plan 2 by July 1, 1996. Plan 3 members are immediately vested
in the defined contribution portion of their plan.

Contributions

TRS defined benefit retirement benefits are financed from a combination of investment earnings
and employer and employee contributions.

Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 1 employer contributions rates,

Plan 2 employer and employee contribution rates, and Plan 3 employer contribution rates.
Contribution requirements are established and amended by state statute.
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All employers are required to contribute at the level established by the Legislature. The methods
used to determine the contribution requirements are established under state statute in accordance
with chapters 41.32 and 41.45 RCW.

The employer contribution rate for the Workers” Compensation Program at the close of fiscal year
2017 for each of Plans 1, 2, and 3 was 13.13 percent.

The member contribution rate for Plan 1 is established by statute at six percent for employees of
state agencies and higher education employees. Contributions for Plan 2 members are determined
by the aggregate method and may vary over time. The contribution rate for Plan 2 state agency
and higher education employees at June 30, 2017, was 5.95 percent of the employee’s annual
covered salary. Under Plan 3, employer contributions finance the defined benefit portion of the
plan, and member contributions finance the defined contribution portion. The Director of the DRS
sets Plan 3 employee contribution rate options. Members can choose from six rate options ranging
from 5 to 15 percent. Two of the options are graduated rates dependent on the employee’s age.

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015, with the

results rolled forward to June 30, 2016, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all
periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.00%
Salary increases 3.75%
Discount rate 7.50%
Investment rate of return 7.50%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Table and Combined Disabled
Table published by the Society of Actuaries. The Office of the State Actuary applied offsets to the
base table and recognized future improvements in mortality by projecting the mortality rates using
100 percent Scale BB. Mortality rates are applied on a generational basis, meaning members are
assumed to receive additional mortality improvements in each future year, throughout their
lifetime.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015, valuation were based on the results of the
2007-2012 Experience Study Report. Additional assumptions for subsequent events and law
changes are current as of the 2015 actuarial valuation report.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which a best estimate of expected future rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense but including inflation) are developed for each major asset
class by the WSIB. Those expected returns make up one component of WSIB’s Capital Market
Assumptions (CMAs). The CMAs contain the following three pieces of information for each class
of assets in which the WSIB currently invests:
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e Expected annual return
e Standard deviation of the annual return
e Correlations between the annual returns of each asset class with every other asset class

WSIB uses the CMAs and their target asset allocation to simulate future investment returns over
various time horizons.

The Office of the State Actuary (OSA) selected a 7.5 percent long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments. In selecting this assumption, OSA reviewed the historical experience
data, considered the historical conditions that produced past annual investment returns, and
considered CMAs and simulated expected investment returns provided by WSIB. Refer to the
2015 Report on Financial Condition and Economic Experience Study on the OSA website for
additional background on how this assumption was selected.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension
plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2016, are summarized in the following table:

Rates of Return
Target Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Fixed Income 20% 1.70%
Tangible Assets 5% 4.40%
Real Estate 15% 5.80%
Global Equity 37% 6.60%
Private Equity 23% 9.60%
Total 100%

The inflation component used to create the above table is 2.20 percent and represents WSIB’s most
recent long-term estimate of broad economic inflation.

The discount rate of 7.50 percent was also used for the prior measurement date. To determine the
discount rate, an asset sufficiency test was completed to test whether the pension plan’s fiduciary
net position was sufficient to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Consistent with current law, the completed asset sufficiency test included an assumed 7.70 percent
long-term discount rate to determine funding liabilities for calculating future contribution rate
requirements. Consistent with the long-term expected rate of return, a 7.50 percent future
investment rate of return on invested assets was assumed for the test. Contributions from plan
members and employers are assumed to continue to be made at contractually-required rates. Based
on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return of 7.50 percent on pension plan investments was applied to determine the
total pension liability.
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The following presents the net pension liability/(asset) of the employers, calculated using the
discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the employers’ net pension liability/(asset) would be
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.50 percent) or one
percentage point higher (8.50 percent) than the current rate.

Employers’ Proportionate Share of
Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

TRS 1 TRS 2/3
1% Decrease $ 95,193 $ 66,665
Current Discount Rate $ 70,402 $ 29,456
1% Increase $ 62,142 $  (34,220)

Net Pension Liability

At June 30, 2017, the Workers” Compensation Program reported a liability of $70,402 for its
proportionate share of the collective net pension liability for TRS 1 and $29,456 for TRS 2/3.
Workers’ Compensation Program proportion for TRS 1 was 0.210 percent, a decrease of 0.170
percent since the prior reporting period, and 0.250 percent for TRS 2/3, a decrease of 0.230 percent.
The proportions are based on the Workers’ Compensation Program contributions to the pension
plan relative to the contributions of all participating employers.

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources

For the year ended June 30, 2017, a pension expense reduction of $32,434 was recognized for TRS
1, and an increase to pension expense of $5,975 was recognized for TRS 2/3.

At June 30, 2017, TRS 1 and TRS 2/3 reported deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of Resources
June 30, 2017

TRS1 TRS 2/3 Total

Difference between expected and actual

experience $ - $ 2,228 % 2,228
Changes of assumptions - 300 300
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 2,233 4,742 6,975
Change in proportionate share of contributions - (11,200) (11,200)
Contributions subsequent to measurement date 7,670 8,667 16,338
Total $ 9,903 $ 4,737 $ 14,640
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At June 30, 2017, TRS 1 and TRS 2/3 reported deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

from the following sources:

Deferred Inflows of Resources

June 30, 2017

Difference between expected and actual
experience

Changes of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments

Change in proportionate share of contributions

Total

TRS1 TRS 2/3 Total
- $ 1,307 $ 1,307
- $ 1307  $ 1,307

Pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement date in the amount of $7,670 and
$8,667 for TRS 1 and TRS 2/3, respectively, were reported as deferred outflows of resources at
June 30, 2017, and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2018.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Net Deferred Outflows and (Inflows) of Resources

Fiscal Year ended June 30, TRS 1 TRS 2/3
2018 $ (577) $ (2,144)
2019 $ (577) $ (2,144)
2020 $ 2,089 $ 606
2021 $ 1,298 $ (909)
2022 $ - $ (647)
Thereafter $ ) $ )

Note 10 - Other Postemployment Benefits

The Workers’ Compensation Program is administered by L&I, an agency of the state of
Washington and part of the primary government. Employees of the Workers” Compensation
Program are eligible to participate in the state of Washington’s defined benefit Other
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Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) plan, an agent multiple-employer plan, as administered by the
state through the Washington State Health Care Authority (HCA).

Plan Description and Funding Policy

Per RCW 41.05.065, the Public Employees Benefits Board (PEBB) created within the HCA is
authorized to design benefits and determine the terms and conditions of employee and retired
employee participation and coverage, including establishment of eligibility criteria for both active
and retired employees. PEBB programs include medical, dental, life, and long-term disability
insurance.

The relationship between the PEBB OPEB plan and its member employers and their employees
and retirees is not formalized in a contract or plan document. Rather, the benefits are provided in
accordance with a substantive plan in effect at the time of each valuation. A substantive plan is
one in which the plan terms are understood by the employers and plan members. This
understanding is based on communications between the HCA, employers and plan members, and
the historical pattern of practice with regard to the sharing of benefit costs.

The PEBB retiree OPEB plan is available to employees who elect to continue coverage and pay
the administratively-established premiums at the time they retire, under the provisions of the
retirement system to which they belong. Retirees’ access to PEBB plans depends on the retirement
eligibility of their respective retirement system. PEBB members are covered in the following
retirement systems: Public Employees’ Retirement System, Public Safety Employees’ Retirement
System, Teachers’ Retirement System, School Employees’ Retirement System, Washington State
Patrol Retirement System, Higher Education, Judicial, and LEOFF 2.

Per RCW 41.05.022, retirees who are not yet eligible for Medicare benefits may continue
participation in the state’s non-Medicare community-rated health insurance risk pool on a self-pay
basis. Retirees in the non-Medicare risk pool receive an implicit subsidy. The implicit subsidy
exists because retired members pay a premium based on the claims experience for active
employees and other non-Medicare retirees. The subsidy is valued using the difference between
the age-based claim costs and the premium. In calendar year 2016, the average weighted implicit
subsidy was valued at $304 per adult unit per month, and in calendar year 2017, the average
weighted implicit subsidy is projected to be $328 per adult unit per month.

Retirees who are enrolled in both Parts A and B of Medicare may participate in the state’s Medicare
community-rated health insurance risk pool. Medicare retirees receive an explicit subsidy in the
form of reduced premiums. Annually, the HCA administrator recommends an amount for the next
calendar year’s explicit subsidy for inclusion in the Governor’s budget. In calendar year 2016, the
explicit subsidy was $150 per adult unit per month, and it remained $150 per adult unit per month
in calendar year 2017.

Administrative costs, as well as implicit and explicit subsidies, are funded by required
contributions from participating employers. The subsidies provide monetary assistance for medical
benefits. Contributions are set each biennium as part of the budget process. The benefits are funded
on a pay-as-you-go basis.
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The plan has no investments or other assets. Accordingly, the PEBB OPEB plan is not reported in
the financial statements of the state, nor is a separate financial report publicly available. For
information on the results of the most recent actuarial valuation for the OPEB plan, refer to:
http://leg.wa.gov/osa/additionalservices/Pages/OPEB.aspx.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The state’s (general government agencies and higher education institutions) annual OPEB cost
(expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the state as the
employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover the normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or
funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years.

The annual OPEB cost recorded for the Workers’ Compensation Program represents an allocation
of the total ARC of the state of Washington, adjusted for interest and amortization. The Workers’
Compensation Program’s annual OPEB cost is calculated by the OSA and is recorded by OFM.
The allocation is primarily based on L&I’s number of active and retired employees in relation to
the total number of active and retired employees of the state.

The following tables show components of the Workers’ Compensation Program’s allocated annual
OPEB costs for fiscal year 2017 and changes in the Workers’ Compensation Program’s Net OPEB
Obligation (NOO). All contributions required by the funding method were paid.

Components of Allocated Annual OPEB Cost
Fiscal Year 2017

Annual required contribution $ 12,926,000
Allocated interest on net OPEB obligation 1,990,000
Allocated amortization of net OPEB obligation (1,989,000)
Allocated annual OPEB cost 12,927,000
Allocated contributions made (2,549,000)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 10,378,000
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 53,078,000
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 63,456,000
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The Workers’ Compensation Program’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost
contributed to the plan, and the NOO for fiscal years 2017, 2016, and 2015 were as follows:

Net OPEB Obligation
by Fiscal Year

2017 2016 2015
Allocated annual OPEB cost $ 12,927,000 $ 13,030,000 $ 12,558,000
Percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed 19.7% 19.4% 18.2%
Increase N NOO 10,378,000 10,505,000 10,274,000
Net OPEB obligation $ 63,456,000 $ 53,078,000 $ 42,573,000

The Workers” Compensation Program’s NOO represents 2.0, 1.9, and 1.8 percent of the state of
Washington’s NOO as of June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015, respectively.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trends.

Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions
of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of the assets, consistent with the long-term perspective
of the calculations.

A complete description of the funded status and actuarial assumptions of the state of Washington’s
OPEB plan is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the state of Washington.
A copy of this report may be obtained by contacting the Statewide Accounting Division of the
Office of Financial Management at P.O. Box 43127, Olympia, Washington 98504-3127, or online
at http://www.ofm.wa.gov/cafr.

Note 11 - Commitments and Contingencies

11.A. Federal Assistance

The Workers’ Compensation Program has received federal financial assistance for specific
purposes that are generally subject to review or audit by the grantor agencies. Entitlement to this
assistance is generally conditional upon compliance with the terms and conditions of grant
agreements and applicable federal regulations. Any disallowance resulting from a review or audit
may become a liability of the Workers” Compensation Program. The Workers’ Compensation
Program does estimate and recognize a claims liability for disallowances when determined by the
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grantor agency or for probable disallowances based on experience pertaining to these grants;
however, these recognized liabilities and any unrecognized disallowances are considered
immaterial to the Workers” Compensation Program’s overall financial condition. The total federal
assistance for fiscal year 2017 was $9.07 million.

11.B. Contingencies

The Workers” Compensation Program is party to numerous routine legal proceedings that normally
occur in the course of operations. At any given point, there may be numerous lawsuits that could
financially impact the Program. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not currently
determinable, the resolution of these matters is not likely to have a material impact on the Workers’
Compensation Program’s financial position, revenues or expenses.

11.C. Financial Guarantees

Effective July 1, 1992, the Washington State Legislature required the Workers” Compensation
Program, under RCW 48.22.070, to participate in an assigned risk pool, the Washington United
States Longshore and Harbor Workers’ Compensation Act Assigned Risk Plan (WARP),
providing workers’ compensation coverage under the United States Longshoreman and Harbor
Workers” Act (USL&H). The Workers’ Compensation Program is obligated to participate 50
percent in the underwriting losses or surpluses of the assigned risk pool. This participation is
scheduled to continue indefinitely due to amending legislation passed in 1997.

The WARP was authorized to provide USL&H coverage to those unable to purchase it through
the normal market. The rules governing the plan are contained in chapter 284-22 of the Washington
Administrative Code. It is administered by a governing committee appointed by the Insurance
Commissioner and made up of the Director of L&I and three members representing each of the
following stakeholder groups: labor, maritime employers, and insurers and insurance producers.
The plan has been operating profitably, and the Workers” Compensation Program has not made
any payments to this risk pool since enactment of this indefinite commitment. It is unlikely that
the Workers” Compensation Program will be required to make any payments in the near future.
Therefore, there are no guarantees extended that are outstanding at the reporting date. No payment
recovery arrangements were authorized from other parties under the law.

Note 12 - Subsequent Events

12.A. Proposed Rate Announcement

Each year, the Director of L&I adopts new workers’ compensation insurance premium rates for
the next calendar year. On September 20, 2017, the Director announced a proposed 2.5 percent
decrease in the average premium rate for 2018. This rate decrease will reduce the overall hourly
rate from $0.692 to $0.675 or $0.017 per hour, which equates to an average cost reduction of $34
a year per employee.
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The following four principles were used to guide the rate-setting process:

1) Set steady and predictable rate increases to help businesses plan ahead.

2) Benchmark rates against wage inflation (this happens automatically in other states).
3) Maintain the reserves to protect against unexpected changes.

4) Lower costs while focusing on better outcomes for injured workers.

The final rates will be adopted in early December 2017 and go into effect on January 1, 2018.
12.B. Industrial Insurance Rainy Day Fund

RCW 51.44.023 was enacted during the 2011 Legislative session, creating an Industrial Insurance
Rainy Day Fund to hold transfers from the Accident and Medical Aid Accounts when assets for
those accounts combined are between 10 and 30 percent of total liabilities for the Industrial
Insurance Fund. Money from the Industrial Insurance Rainy Day Fund should be applied to reduce
a rate increase or aid business in recovering from or during economic recessions. For the first time
since the creation of the Industrial Insurance Rainy Day Fund a transfer was made to the fund in
January 2017, because the contingency reserve balance as of June 30, 2016, exceeded 10 percent.
Based on the June 30, 2017, Statutory Financial Information Report for the Industrial Insurance
Fund, the combined contingency reserve is 21.8 percent of total liabilities. As a part of the 2018
rate-making process, the Director will determine the timing and amount of a transfer.

*Statutory Financial Information is based on Statutory Accounting Principles (SAP) as promulgated by the National
Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC).
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Reconciliation of Claims Liabilities by Plan
Fiscal Years 2017 and 2016
(in thousands)

The schedule below presents the changes in claims liabilities for the past two fiscal years for the
Workers” Compensation Basic and Supplemental Pension Plans:

Supplemental

Basic Plan Pension Plan Total
Claims Payable FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2016
Unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses at
beginning of fiscal year $ 13,591,324 $ 13,233,959 $ 12,261,000 $ 11,832,190 $ 25,852,324 $ 25,066,149
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses
Provision for insured events of the current fiscal year 1,775,245 1,779,283 286,952 269,208 2,062,197 2,048,491
Increase (decrease) in provision for insured
events of prior fiscal years (271,892) 326,795 1,240,410 649,051 968,518 975,846
Total incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 1,503,353 2,106,078 1,527,362 918,259 3,030,715 3,024,337
Payments
Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to
Events of the current fiscal year 309,490 303,784 - - 309,490 303,784
Insured events of prior fiscal years 1,450,649 1,444,927 482,362 489,449 1,933,011 1,934,376
Total payments 1,760,139 1,748,711 482,362 489,449 2,242,501 2,238,160
Total Unpaid Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses
at Fiscal Year End $ 13,334,538 $ 13,591,326 $ 13,306,000 $ 12,261,000 $ 26,640,538 $ 25,852,326
Current portion $ 1,490,328 $ 1,496,612 $ 545546 $ 514,962 $ 2,035874 $ 2,011,574
Noncurrent portion $ 11,844,210 $ 12,094,714 $ 12,760,454 $ 11,746,038 $ 24,604,664 $ 23,840,752

Source: Washington State Department of Labor & Industries Actuarial Services
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Schedule of the Workers’ Compensation Program’s Share of the Net Pension Liability
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) Plan 1
Measurement Date of June 30

Workers’ Compensation Program's employers' proportion of the
net pension liability*

Workers’ Compensation Program's employers' proportionate share
of the net pension liability

Workers' Compensation Program's covered payroll of employees
participating in PERS plan 1

Workers' Compensation Program's covered payroll of employees
participating in PERS plan 2/3

Workers” Compensation Program's employers' covered-employee
payroli*

Workers” Compensation Program's employers' proportionate share
of the net pension liability as a percentage of its covered-employee
payrol*

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension
liability
This schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data.

*Updated 2014 to employer contribution provided by the Office of Financial
Management

2016

3.22%

$ 72,577,582
$ 3,324,167
153,876,703

2015
3.26%

$ 70,982,707

$ 3,934,364

145,729,911

2014
3.24%

$ 69,146,130

$ 4,660,286

139,125,855

$ 157,200,870

$149,664,275

$143,786,141

2183.33%

57.03%

1804.35%

59.10%

1483.82%

61.19%

Schedule of the Workers’ Compensation Program’s Share of the Net Pension Liability
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) Plan 2/3
Measurement Date of June 30

Workers’ Compensation Program's employers' proportion of the
net pension liability*

Workers” Compensation Program's employers' proportionate share
of the net pension liability

Workers’ Compensation Program's employers' covered-employee
payrol*

Workers” Compensation Program's employers' proportionate share
of the net pension liability as a percentage of its covered-employee
payrolr*

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension
liability
This schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data.

*Updated 2014 to employer contribution provided by the Office of Financial
Management

2016
3.31%

$ 82,761,762

$ 153,786,703

53.78%

85.82%

2015
3.34%

$ 58,566,959

$145,729,911

40.19%

89.20%

2014
3.30%

$ 32,912,727

$139,125,855

23.66%

93.29%
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Schedule of the Workers’ Compensation Program’s Share of the Net Pension Liability

Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS) Plan 1

Measurement Date of June 30

Workers’ Compensation Program's employers' proportion of the
net pension liability*

Workers’ Compensation Program's employers' proportionate share
of the net pension liability

Workers' Compensation Program's covered payroll of employees
participating in TRS plan 1

Workers' Compensation Program's covered payroll of employees
participating in TRS plan 2/3

Workers’ Compensation Program's employers' covered-employee
payrol*

Workers’ Compensation Program's employers' proportionate share
of the net pension liability as a percentage of its covered-employee
payrol*

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension
liability

This schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data.

*Updated 2014 to employer contribution provided by the Office of Financial
Management

2016 2015 2014

0.210% 0.380% 0.800%

$ 70,402 $ 104,621 $ 183,886
$ 12,044 $ 14,869 $ 36,888
104,508 161,784 282,403

$ 116,552 $ 176,653 $ 319,291
584.57% 700.00% 497.30%
62.07% 65.70% 68.77%

Schedule of the Workers’ Compensation Program’s Share of the Net Pension Liability

Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS) Plan 2/3

Measurement Date of June 30

Workers’ Compensation Program's employers' proportion of the
net pension liability™>

Workers’ Compensation Program's employers' proportionate share
of the net pension liability

Workers’ Compensation Program's employers' covered-employee
payrol*

Workers’ Compensation Program's employers' proportionate share
of the net pension liability as a percentage of its covered-employee
payrol*

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension
liability

This schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data.

*Updated 2014 to employer contribution provided by the Office of Financial
Management

$

$

2016
0.250%

29,456

104,508

28.19%

88.72%

$

$

2015
0.480%

29,388

161,784

17.90%

92.48%

$

$

2014
1.100%

21,139

282,403

7.45%

96.81%
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Schedule of Contributions

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) Plan 1

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2017 2016 2015 2014
Worlfers_ Compensation Program's contractually-required $ 7844689 $ 7431555 $ 6.064.083 $ 5,042,879
contributions
Workers” Compensation Progran}sﬁ err_1p|o_yer contributions related to 307,076 366,587 360,952 420,032
covered payroll of employees participating in PERS plan 1
Workers” Compensation Program's employer UAAL contributions
related to covered payroll of employees participating in PERS plan 2/3 7,537,613 7,064,968 5,703,131 5,522,847
Worke_:rs Compgnsatlon F_’rograms contributions in relation to the 7,844,689 7,431 555 6,064,083 5,942,879
actuarially determined contributions
Workers” Compensation Program's contribution deficiency (excess) $ -8 -8 - $ -
WOI-‘k.erS- C_ompensatlon Program's covered payroll of employees $2.747.980 $3,324,167 $3,034,364 $4,660,286
participating in PERS plan 1
WOTk_ers’_ C_ompensatlon Program's covered payroll of employees 163,143,479 153,876,703 145,729,911 139,125,855
participating in PERS plan 2/3
Workers” Compensation Program's covered-employee payroll $ 165,891,459 $ 157,200,870 $ 149,664,275 $ 143,786,141
Workers’ Compensation Program's contributions as a percentage of 4.73% 4.73% 4.05% 4.13%
covered-employee payroll
This schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data.
Schedule of Contributions
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) Plan 2/3
Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2017 2016 2015 2014
Workers” Compensation Program's contractually-required contribution $ 10,148,160 $ 9,501,317 $ 7,327,801 $ 6,911,983
Workers Compe_nsatlon I?rog_jrams contributions in relation to the 10,148,160 9,501,317 7.327.801 6,911,083
contractually-required contribution
Workers” Compensation Program's contribution deficiency (excess) $ - 3% - 3 - 3 -
Workers’ Compensation Program's covered-employee payroll $163,143,479 $153,876,703 $145,729,911 $139,125,855
Workers’ Compensation Program's contributions as a percentage of 6.22% 6.17% 5.03% 4.97%

covered-employee payroll

This schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data.
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Schedule of Contributions

Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS) Plan 1

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2017 2016 2015 2014
Worlfers_ Compensation ~ Program's  contractually  required $ 7577 % 6174 $ 7207 $ 12,295
contributions
Workers” Compensation Program s_ emplo_yer contributions related to 685 775 1,475 3,605
covered-payroll of employees participating in TRS plan 1
Workers’ Compensation Program's employer UAAL contributions
related to covered-payroll of employees participating in TRS plan 2/3 6,892 5399 5,822 8,690
Worktf:rs Compgnsatlon I_Drograms contributions in relation to the 7577 6.174 7297 12,295
actuarially determined contributions
Workers’ Compensation Program's contribution deficiency (excess) $ -8 -8 - $ -
Wor_k_ers_ C_ompensatlon Program's covered payroll of employees $5.198 $12,044 $14,869 $36,888
participating in TRS plan 1
WoTk_ers_ C_ompensatlon Program's covered-payroll of employees 131.335 104,508 161,784 282,403
participating in TRS plan 2/3
Workers’ Compensation Program's covered-employee payroll $136,533 $ 116,552 $ 176,653 $ 319,291
Workers” Compensation Program's contributions as a percentage of 5 55% 530% 413% 3.85%
covered-employee payroll
This schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data.
Schedule of Contributions
Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS) Plan 2/3
Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2017 2016 2015 2014
Workers’ Compensation Program's contractually-required contribution $8,855 $7,069 $9,233 $15,989
Workers Compe_nsatlon F_’rograms contributions in relation to the 8,855 7,069 9,233 15,989
contractually-required contribution
Workers” Compensation Program's contribution deficiency (excess) $ - % - % - $ -
Workers” Compensation Program's covered-employee payroll $131,335 $104,508 $161,784 $282,403
Workers’ Compensation Program's contributions as a percentage of 6.74% 6.76% 5 71% 5 66%
covered-employee payroll
This schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Methods and assumptions used in calculations of Actuarially Determined Contributions
(ADC) for PERS and TRS.

The Office of the State Actuary (OSA) calculates the ADC based on the results of an actuarial
valuation consistent with the state’s funding policy defined under chapter 41.45 RCW. Consistent
with the state’s contribution rate adoption process, the results of an actuarial valuation with an
odd-numbered year valuation date determine the ADC for the biennium that ensues two years
later. For example, the actuarial valuation with a June 30, 2013, valuation date, completed in the
fall of 2014, determines the ADC for the period beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017.

OSA calculates the ADC consistent with the methods described above. Adopted contribution rates
may be different, pending the actions of the governing bodies. For instance, for the period
beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017, the contribution rates adopted by the Pension
Funding Council and unchanged by the Legislature reflect a phase-in of the increase to
contribution rates that resulted from a change to the mortality assumption. The increase is expected
to be phased in over three biennia for PERS 1/2/3 and TRS 1/2/3.

For cost-sharing plans, OSA calculates the Contractually Required Contributions (CRC) using
the same assumptions and methods as the ADC except the CRC reflect the adopted contribution
rates for the time period shown, which may differ from the contribution rates produced for the
ADC.
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September 29, 2017

Statement of Actuarial Opinion
Regarding GAAP Reserves

State of Washington — Workers’ Compensation Program
Identification

I, Rod Morris, am a Specialist Leader with the firm of Deloitte Consulting LLP. I am a Member of the American
Academy of Actuaries and meet its qualification standards for issuing Statements of Actuarial Opinion. I am a
Fellow of the Casualty Actuarial Society. I was appointed by the Washington State Auditor’s Office to provide a
Statement of Actuarial Opinion regarding the reasonableness of the State of Washington Workers’
Compensation Program’s (“the Program”) carried Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("GAAP”) loss and
loss adjustment expense ("LAE”) reserves as of June 30, 2017.

The Program is comprised of four Workers’ Compensation Program Accounts: the Accident Account, the
Medical Aid Account, the Pension Reserve Account, and the Supplemental Pension Account. The Program is
currently administered by State of Washington Department of Labor & Industries (“the Department”).

Scope

I have examined the reserves for the unpaid loss and LAE as shown in the Program’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report as of June 30, 2017. I have reviewed the June 30, 2017 loss and loss adjustment expense
recorded under U.S. Governmental Accounting Standard GAAP. My review considered information provided to
me through the date of this opinion.

In forming my opinion on the loss and LAE reserves, I relied upon data provided by Mr. William Vasek, the
Department’s Chief Actuary, his actuarial staff, and Sharon Elias, the Department’s Financial Services Program
Manager. I evaluated that data for reasonableness and consistency. My examination included the use of such
actuarial assumptions and methods and such tests of the calculations as I considered necessary.

My review was limited to the reserves listed below and did not include an analysis of any other balance sheet
items. I have not examined the Program’s assets and I have formed no opinion as to the validity or value of
these assets.

Opinion

A summary of the Program’s recorded loss and LAE reserves by account in its Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report as of June 30, 2017 is as follows:

Accident Account $4,667,163,000
Medical Aid Account 4,140,730,000
Pension Reserve Account __4,526,645,000
Total Basic Plan Loss and LAE Reserves $13,334,538,000
Supplemental Pension Account 13,306,000,000
Total Program Loss and LAE Reserves $26,640,538,000

In my opinion, the loss and LAE amounts listed above and displayed in the Program’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report as of June 30, 2017:
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(A) meet the requirements of the insurance laws of the State of Washington;

(B) are consistent with reserves computed in accordance with accepted actuarial standards and
principles;
(© make a reasonable provision for all unpaid loss and loss adjustment expense obligations of the

Program under the terms of its contracts and agreements.

Relevant Comments

A. Company-Specific Risk Factors

Actuarial Estimates of property and casualty loss and LAE reserves are inherently uncertain because they are
dependent on future contingent events. Also, these unpaid claim liability estimates are generally derived from
analyses of historical data, and future events or conditions may differ from the past. The actual amount
necessary to settle the unpaid claims may therefore be significantly different from the reserve amounts listed
above.

The major factors and/or particular conditions underlying the risk and uncertainties that I consider relevant to
the Department’s estimates of unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses of June 30, 2017 are described in
the sections below.

By statute, the Program’s direct exposure is limited to one line of business (workers’ compensation) in one
state (Washington). Therefore, any adverse trends affecting this line of business and/or state could have a
material effect on the Program’s loss and LAE reserves. Such trends would include legislative benefit level
changes and adverse decisions or interpretations of law that may have an effect on all open workers’
compensation claims.

A major assumption in the analysis of the medical component of the workers” compensation reserves is the
selection of a long-term medical trend factor to apply to future calendar year medical payments. Estimating
medical trend has become increasingly difficult in recent years because it has been highly variable. In my
opinion, there is a higher than normal degree of variability associated with the Program’s medical loss
reserves due to the uncertainty surrounding future medical trends and the expected length of medical
payments.

The Department discounts the loss and LAE reserves to reflect the time value of money using an average
annual interest rate of 2.37%. Changes to the interest rate used for discounting could result in material
changes to the reserves. We note that the current risk free interest rate matching the duration of these
liabilities (approximately 17.3 years) was 2.53% as of June 30, 2017.

A major assumption in the analysis of the Supplemental Pension Account and Pension Reserve Account is
future cost of living adjustments and the implicit assumption that the State of Washington cost of living
adjustments will be similar to cost of living adjustments approved by the Federal Government for Social
Security retirement benefits. Future State of Washington cost of living adjustments different from those
anticipated or that vary significantly from those approved by the Federal Government for Social Security
retirement benefits could result in a material change in future costs and the adequacy of the reserves.

The Program is exposed to the uncertainty of variability of the reserves which could result in material adverse
deviation. I have identified those risk factors as the lack of diversity of exposure by line of business and by
state, future medical trend, the discounting of the reserves, and future cost of living adjustments. These risk
factors are described in greater detail in the preceding paragraphs and in the report supporting this opinion.
The absence of other risk factors from this commentary is not meant to imply that additional factors cannot be
identified in the future as having had a significant influence on the Program'’s reserves.
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B. Other Disclosures

Pension Liabilities for State Employees

Statutory Accounting Principles ("SAP”) do not require the Program to record a separate liability for the
unfunded State employee pensions. However, the Program under SAP recognizes a portion of the unfunded
state employee pension in the claims administrative expense (“"CAE") liability for the portion pertaining to its
claims administration.

Due to a new Governmental Accounting Standard, GAAP now requires the Program to record a liability for the
total unfunded state employee pensions in its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report ("CAFR") as of June 30,
2017. The CAE liability in the CAFR does not include any of the unfunded State employee pensions so as to
not double count the liability. This difference in accounting results in a GAAP CAE liability that is approximately
$11.4 million less than the SAP CAE liability.

Therefore, the GAAP unpaid claim liabilities shown above upon which I am expressing an opinion exclude the
liabilities for the unfunded State employee pensions for staff administering claims. The amounts excluded total
$11,436,000 ($3,785,000 for the Accident Account and $7,651,000 for the Medical Aid Account).

Discounting

The Department discounts the loss and LAE reserves to reflect the time value of money. The amount of
discount is based on an actuarially derived projected payment pattern and selected annual interest rates as
follows.

=  For the Medical Aid Account, the Department’s selected interest rate is 1.5%.
=  For the Pension Reserve Account, the Department’s selected interest rate is 6.2%.

=  For the Accident Account, combinations of interest rates are used to discount the reserves. The future
total permanent disability and fatal transfers made to the Pension Account assume interest discounts
based on an annual rate of 6.2% through the 15t quarter of 2018. This rate is reduced to 6.00% for
the next 12 months and then is gradually reduced each additional 12-month period by 0.25% for the
following six 12-month periods until settling on a long term annual rate of 4.5%. The actual transfer
payments and all other payments are discounted using a Department selected rate of 1.5%.

=  For the Supplemental Pension Account, the Department’s selected interest rate is 1.5%.

The average combined interest rate for the Program is approximately 2.37% with a total discount amount of
$11.6 billion. The interest rates were selected by the Department, and I make no opinion regarding the
appropriateness of the selected rates. We note that the current risk free interest rate matching the duration of
these liabilities was 2.53% as of June 30, 2017.

The interest rate used to discount the Pension Reserve Account changed from 6.3% last year to 6.2% this
year. The effect of reducing these interest rate assumptions this year was an increase in the discounted
unpaid claim liability of $53.6 million on the Pension Reserve Account reserve.

The interest rate used to discount the Accident Account future total permanent disability and fatal transfers
made to the Pension Reserve Account continued to gradually decrease to 4.5% this year. Although, we note
that the rate at which the interest rates gradually decreased to 4.5% changed this year, causing the
discounted unpaid claim liability to decrease $44.5 million. The interest rate used for all other future payments
remained the same this year at 1.5%.

The net effect of all the interest rate assumption changes combined this year was an increase in the
discounted unpaid claim liability of $9.1 million including the current fiscal accident year.

Underwriting Pools or Associations

The Program participates in the Washington United States Longshore and Harbor Workers” Compensation Act
Assigned Risk Plan ("WARP”) which was established to provide USL&H workers’ compensation insurance
coverage for employers unable to purchase it through the normal private insurance market. The Program pays
assessments to WARP and participates in any underwriting losses or surpluses incurred by WARP. Based on
discussions with the Department, we understand that WARP is not currently in a deficit position. Therefore,
the Program has not booked a reserve to account for any unpaid claim liability related to WARP.

We understand that the Program does not participate in any other voluntary or involuntary pools.

Reinsurance
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The Program has no ceded or assumed reinsurance. Based on discussions with the Department’s management
and their description of the Program’s ceded (and/or assumed) reinsurance, I am not aware of any
reinsurance contract that either has been or should have been accounted for as retroactive reinsurance or
financial reinsurance.

Major Assumption Changes and Other Comments

The Supplemental Pension Account COLA adjustment for fiscal year 2018 of 4.77% was obtained from the
Employment Security Department’s State Average Annual Wage data and represents the change in calendar
year 2016 wages. By statute, the COLAs are based on the annual calendar year change to the states’ average
wages. The Department projects the COLA adjustments for fiscal years 2019 through 2027 by using a linear
interpolation between the average of the most recent ten years of COLA adjustments (3.1%) and a long term
constant COLA adjustment assumption of 1.5%. For projected COLA adjustments subsequent to fiscal year
2027, the Department uses the long term assumption of 1.5% per year. Although this is a consistent
approach to last year’s analysis, we note that updating the future COLA assumptions caused the Supplemental
Pension Account liability to increase by $632 million. In addition, last year the Department used a linear
interpolation between the current fiscal year COLA adjustment (or 4.77%) and 1.5%. If this approach was
used instead of the most recent ten year average of COLA adjustments, we note that the Supplemental
Pension Account unpaid claim liability estimate would have been $1.6 billion higher.

During our review of the Supplemental Pension Account, we considered the Department’s selection of future
COLA adjustments. The Department’s selections are lower than the most recent or long term historical
average of COLA adjustments. For example, the simple average of the most recent 15 years of COLA
adjustments is 3.18% with annual changes varying between 2.4% (at the 30th percentile) and 3.8% (at the
70t percentile). These COLA adjustments have been at this level while interest rate and/or inflation rate
changes have been declining during this same time period. The materiality of this assumption is significant
given that selecting the most recent 15 year historical average COLA adjustment of 3.18% would increase the
Supplemental Pension Account discounted liability by $5.4 billion. The Department has assumed that there will
be a significant correlation between changes in the future COLA adjustments and changes in the interest rates
in the future even though the correlation between the two has been weak at best in the past.

It is difficult to determine the reasonableness of this future correlation considering it has not occurred in the
past. Therefore, we have decided to consider the reasonableness of the Supplemental Pension Account liability
(and thus the total GAAP liability) assuming the historical average COLA adjustments. In doing so, we believe
that the selection of the COLA adjustment should not be considered in isolation but in conjunction with the
selection of the interest rate used to discount the liabilities.

The Department’s average interest rate used to discount the GAAP reserves is 2.37%. The risk free interest
rate that matches the duration of these liabilities (approximately 17 years) as of June 30, 2017 is 2.53%
which is higher than the Department’s selected 2.37% but not enough to offset the low future COLA
assumptions discussed above. Although there is a current disconnect between the current risk free interest
rate and the Department’s chosen discount rate, we do agree with the Department that wages long term (and
thus COLA Adjustments) will move in the same direction as inflation and the risk free interest rates. In
addition, we believe that there are alternative approaches to calculating the risk free interest rate used to
discount the liabilities that would be high enough to offset the low future COLA assumptions the Department is
currently using. Therefore, we conclude that the GAAP reserves are reasonable overall.

Over the past few years the claim count persistency rates (i.e. number of active time-loss claims) have
continued to decline dramatically. The Department’s actuarial methodologies for certain types of claim
categories (i.e. medical, time-loss, and total permanent disability) are highly dependent on a future estimate
of the persistency rates. The future persistency rate assumptions selected over the past year by the
Department have dropped significantly to reflect the actual recent changes or declines in the persistency
rates. This drop in assumption has caused a significant decrease in the unpaid claim liability estimates even
more than what would be indicated in the favorable paid amounts over the past year.
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C. General Uncertainty

In evaluating whether the reserves make a reasonable provision for unpaid losses and LAE, it is necessary to
project future loss and LAE payments. It is certain that actual future losses and LAE will not develop exactly as
projected and may, in fact, vary significantly from the projections. No warranty is expressed or implied that
such variance will not occur. Further, my projections make no provision for the broadening of coverage by
legislative action or judicial interpretation or for extraordinary future emergence of new classes of losses or
types of losses not sufficiently represented in the Program’s historical data base or which are not yet
quantifiable.

This Statement of Actuarial Opinion regarding GAAP reserves is solely for the use of assessing the
reasonableness of the GAAP loss and LAE reserves and is only to be relied upon by the Program and the State
of Washington.

T =l Mewd

Rod Morris, FCAS, FSA, MAAA
Deloitte Consulting LLP

555 West 5t Street, Suite 2700
Los Angeles, CA 90013

(213) 688-3374
rmorris@deloitte.com
September 29, 2017
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State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program

Statistical Section
Narrative and Index

This section of the state of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program’s CAFR presents detailed information as a
supplement to the information in the basic financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary

information to assist readers in assessing the program’s overall financial health.

Page
FINANCIAL TRENDS
These schedules contain trend information to help readers understand how the program’s financial performance
and fiscal health have changed over time.
Schedule 1 - Net Position by Component, Last Ten FiSCal YEAIS ........cccceivvviiiieieniiiiecieieses s se e e see e 109
Schedule 2 - Changes in Net Position, Last Ten FiSCal YEAIS .........ccviviveieeiieie s sesie e ree e e se s se e e e 110
REVENUE CAPACITY
These schedules contain information to help readers assess the program’s most significant revenue sources.
Schedule 3 - Revenues by SOUICE, LASt TEN YRAIS......cuciviieieieie e steseetieeesee e seestesiessee e seeseestestesresseeneeneesseseens 111
Schedule 4 - Employer Accounts, Last TeN FiSCal YEAIS ........coiiiiiiiriiiiicise sttt 112
DEBT CAPACITY
These schedules contain information to help readers assess the affordability of the program’s current level of
outstanding debt and major obligations.
Schedule 5 - Ratios of Outstanding Debt, Last TeN FiSCal YEaIS.........cccvvieiieeiieiieeieeie e st eee e 113
Schedule 6 - Schedule of Changes in Claims Payable, Last Ten Fiscal Years .......ccccccoecveveiiiievieneece e, 114
DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help readers understand the environment in
which the program operates.
Schedule 7 - Washington State Population and Components of Change, Last Ten Calendar Years.................... 115
Schedule 8 - Washington State Personal Income, Last Ten Calendar YEars........ccocvoveverereresesesieereeieeneeneeseens 116
Schedule 9 - Washington State Unemployment Rate, Last Ten Calendar Years...........cccccvevvevveveereesesieesieennnn,s 116
Schedule 10 - Washington State Principal Employers by Industry, Last Calendar Year and Nine Years Ago....... 117
Schedule 11 - Washington State Annual Average Wages by Industry, Last Ten Calendar Years ..........c..ccccevenen. 118
Schedule 12 - Demographics of Accepted Claims, Last Ten Fiscal Years.........cccccvvveveeveiiieiiesicseece e 119
OPERATING INFORMATION
These schedules offer operating data to help readers understand how the information in the program’s financial
report relates to the services it provides and the activities it performs.
Schedule 13 - Number of Employees by Division, Last Ten FiSCal YEarS..........cccvvcvriveierereneseseseeeeieeneenee e 120
Schedule 14 - Capital Asset Indicators — Business Locations, Last Ten Calendar Years........c.ccocveevveveveerenernnnens 121
Schedule 15 - Claims Statistics and Five Most Frequent Injuries, Last Ten Fiscal Years........ccoccocvvvvvireinicnenens 122
Schedule 16 - Risk Classes with Greatest Number of Ultimate Claims, Last Ten Fiscal Years.........cccccocevenennne 123

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the state of Washington’s and
the Workers’ Compensation Program’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports.
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State of Washington Workers’ Compensation Program

Schedule 16 - Risk Classes with Greatest Number of Ultimate Claims
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Risk
Class  Risk Class Description 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
3905  Restaurants and Taverns 7,717 7,676 7,518 7,190 6,935 6,706 6,439 6,689 7,131 8,459
4803  Orchards 3,205 3,360 3,395 3,078 2,867 2,654 2,152 2,051 2,221 1,950
6509  Boarding Homes and Retirement Centers 2,334 2,432 2,372 2,501 2,407 2,482 2,398 2,436 2,397 2,365
6109  Physicians & Medical Clinics 2,304 2,122 2,112 2,217 2,139 2,179 2,264 2,219 2,248 2,393
3411  Automobile Dealers, Rentals and Service Shops 1,661 1,667 1,580 1,542 1,564 1,494 1,594 1,605 1,790 2,201
0510  Wood Frame Building Construction 1,651 1,550 1,506 1,340 1,284 1,136 1,208 1,323 2,009 3,148
6108  Nursing Homes 1,643 1,816 1,872 2,041 2,077 2,080 2,186 2,271 2,409 2,661
2104  Fruit & Vegetable Packing - Fresh 1,553 1,686 1,862 1,562 1,481 1,304 1,246 1,309 1,412 1,364
4906  Colleges & Universities 1,539 1,744 1,716 1,758 1,707 1,817 1,773 1,841 1,875 1,903
6103 Schools, Churches and Day Care - Prof./Clerical Staff 1,418 1,390 1,300 1,339 1,345 1,389 1,432 1,343 1,489 1,475
4910  Property and Building Management Services 1,365 1,286 1,277 1,239 1,273 1,291 1,240 1,285 1,332 1,405
0516  Carpentry, N.O.C. 1,340 1,361 1,260 1,048 954 866 762 902 1,190 1,636
1101 Parcel and Package Delivery Service 1,258 1,107 984 968 957 965 957 892 1,020 1,328
4905  Motels and Hotels 1,177 1,174 1,137 1,143 1,122 994 1,020 962 994 1,134
6107  Veterinary Services 1,163 1,058 995 950 894 832 756 700 752 803
1102 Trucking, N.O.C. 1,154 1,031 1,047 1,032 1,044 1,107 1,155 1,174 1,265 1,472
0601  Electrical Wiring: Buildings and Structures 1,127 1,094 1,058 931 923 876 938 986 1,532 1,809
3402  Machine Shops and Machinery Mfg,, N.O.C. 1,119 1,349 1,306 1,325 1,258 1,327 1,226 1,141 1,565 2,064
6602  Janitorial Service 1,077 1,000 1,000 971 934 987 945 849 961 998
6309  Hardware, Auto Parts and Sporting Good Stores 1,072 1,060 1,055 1,065 1,090 1,081 1,035 1,081 1,225 1,496
0307  HVAC Systems, Installation, Service and Repair 1,021 933 856 858 785 732 799 799 1,118 1,360
6406  Retail Stores, N.O.C. 1,009 948 986 1,018 931 1,012 1,010 1,202 1,362 1,495
5307  State Government - All Other Employees, N.O.C. 981 889 851 918 938 1,078 1,232 1,196 1,260 1,274
6511  Chore Services 976 949 886 976 923 921 962 935 909 918
6402 Supermarkets 967 957 1,022 1,016 886 792 823 881 961 1,039
0306  Plumbing 930 819 881 757 729 767 763 793 1,199 1,458
2903  Wood Products Manufacturing, N.O.C. 866 795 819 819 725 733 680 711 822 1,388
0518  Non Wood Frame Building Construction 848 1,006 915 758 692 610 644 762 1,450 1,923
3902 Fruit/Vegetable Canneries/Food Product Mfg., N.O.C. 833 1,006 962 782 740 728 749 836 736 852
3404  Metal Goods Manufacturing, N.O.C. - Under 9 Gauge 784 724 753 787 763 785 677 691 924 1,247
4904  Clerical Office, N.O.C. 748 825 884 1,017 1,014 1,115 1,164 1,207 1,436 1,560
3405  Aircraft Parts Manufacturing, N.O.C. 745 818 822 797 867 801 670 634 715 1,053
Notes:

These claim counts are estimated by fiscal accident year from counts reported through June 30 of each fiscal year. The claims are "allowed" State Fund claims which have been accepted for benefits. Data is
as of September 30, 2017.

The Risk Class is that assigned to the claim.
N.O.C. stands for not otherwise classified.

Per Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 296-17-31002, a Risk Class is defined as: "A grouping of businesses or industries having common or similar exposure to loss without regard to the separate
employments, occupations or operations which are normally associated with the business or industry. Basic classifications describe a specific type of business operation or industry such as mechanical logging,
sawmills, aircraft manufacturing, or restaurants. In most business operations, some workers are exposed to very little hazard, while others are exposed to greater hazard. Since a basic classification reflects the
liability (exposure to hazard) ofa given business or industry, all the operations and occupations that are common to an industry are blended together and included in the classification."

Sources: Washington State Department of Labor & Industries Actuarial Services
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